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The International Fund for Ireland was established as an independent international 
organisation by the British and Irish Governments in 1986.  With contributions 
from the United States of America, Canada, New Zealand, the European Union and 
Australia, the total resources committed by the fund to date amount to UK £527m/
€768m.

The objectives of the fund are:-
•  to promote economic and social advance; and 
•  to encourage contact, dialogue and reconciliation between nationalists and 
unionists throughout Ireland.

The Board of the Fund is appointed jointly by the British and Irish Governments.  It 
is assisted by an Advisory Committee of offi cials appointed by the two Governments.  
The administration of the Fund is provided by a Secretariat, headed by Joint Directors 
General based in Belfast and Dublin.  Where appropriate, Government Departments 
and public bodies act as administering agencies for the Fund, North and South.  In 
addition, the Fund has engaged the services of a team of Development Consultants, 
located across Northern Ireland and the border counties of the South, who act as local 
contact points for the Fund and assist prospective applicants to identify and develop 
proposals.  They also monitor the on-going operation of projects providing 
assistance as necessary.

This Report is presented by the Board to the 
Government of the United Kingdom, the 
Government of Ireland, the Northern Ireland 
Assembly and the Fund’s donors in accordance 
with article 12 of the agreement of 18 
September 1986, as amended, by which the 
International Fund for Ireland was established.
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Chairman’s Report

Over the last 18 years, since 1986, the International Fund for Ireland has promoted 
economic and social advance and encouraged contact, dialogue and reconciliation 
between nationalists and unionists throughout Ireland by providing fi nancial assistance 
to a wide range of projects.  

It has been my privilege to have had the opportunity to participate in the work of the 
Fund for over 15 years.  I was appointed as a Board Member in 1989 and in 1993 
was invited to become Chairman.  During this time I have seen great strides forward 
in the political, economic and social spheres.  In the politically charged atmosphere of 
the early days of the Fund, we worked long and hard to demonstrate our impartiality 
and to build strong and durable relationships with all communities.  Those days are 
long gone and the Fund now enjoys sound working partnerships with representatives 
from all political shades and persuasions.  The economic landscape has also altered 
signifi cantly.  Levels of unemployment have reduced,  although I believe that the Fund 
still has a signifi cant contribution to make in areas where unemployment remains 
unacceptably high.  More of our resources are being channelled into areas of work 
that address directly social issues and community capacity building.

There are many factors underlying the positive changes that have taken place in the 
economic, political and social arenas over the period since the Fund was established.  
I believe that the Fund is one of those factors and that it can share in the credit for 
what has been achieved.  To date, the Fund has committed some £527m (€768m)to 
over 5,500 projects that have promoted economic development and social advance 
in disadvantaged areas and contributed to making progress in cross-community 
reconciliation. The results of this work can be seen in almost every city, town and 
village in Northern Ireland and in the border counties in the South. Ultimately the 
credit for all of this work must go to our international donors whose generous and 
unfl inching fi nancial support has made it all possible.  I do, therefore, wish to record 
my thanks to our friends and donors in Australia, Canada the European Union, New 
Zealand, and the United States of America, for continuing to support the work of the 
Fund.

During the last year, I have continued to enjoy the regular contact with representatives 
of the donor countries.   In March and again in May 2004 I had the opportunity to 
meet with a range of members of Congress and Senate in the United States during 
my visits to Washington DC. Our contacts with the US were sustained through a 
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Congressional Delegation to Ireland in June 2004, led by Congressman Jim Walsh. 
This visit gave us the opportunity to welcome John Duncan, Jerry Costello, Tim 
Holden and Eliot Engel, and to share with them some of the Fund’s success stories.  
In September, we were also pleased to host a visit by Thomas Mefford and Mark 
Philips from USAID and also Mike O’Malley from the US State Department. During 
their visit we were able to take stock of progress in several projects including the 
Community Property Development Scheme (CPDS) at Poyntzpass which was opened 
offi cially by President McAleese.

In May 2004, I had very useful discussions in Brussels 
with M. Barrot, who was at that time the Commissioner 
for Regional Development Policy. It was reassuring  to 
have his support for both the work of the Board and 
the recommendation for continued funding from the 
Commission until  at least 2006.

During October 2004 we were invited to return to 
Canada for discussions with the Canadian Foreign 
Minister, Pierre Pettigrew, with Parliamentary Secretary 

Above: The Chairman with US 
Congressman Jim Walsh.
Below: The official opening of  
Poyntzpass CPDS.
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Dan McTeague and with some of our many 
friends in Parliament including Patrick O’Brien, 
Peter MacKay and Jason Kenny.  It is two years 
since I last visited our supporters in Canada and 
it was gratifying to note the continued strength 
of interest and support.

I appreciate all of these important contacts with 
the representatives of the donor countries in 
addition to the ongoing regular contribution 
from our Observers, Dr J Herron, Cameron 
Millikin, Jose Palma Andreas, Manfred Beschel, 
Peggy Noonan, Bob Waters  and Russell 
Marshall who attend our quarterly Board 
meetings on behalf of Australia, Canada, the 
European Union, New Zealand and the United 

States. I wish to record my thanks to all of them for their continued support.

During 2004, the Board of the Fund has committed £25m to support more than 
300 projects.  These projects have been directed towards economic and social 
enhancement with a particular emphasis on assisting deprived areas. These aspects 
of the Fund’s activities are described in more detail in the subsequent articles in this 
Report.  One important element of the Fund’s success has been its ability to adapt 

Above: The chairman with 
Commissioner M Barrot in 
Brussels.
Below right: The Chairman 
with Canadian Foreign Minister 
Pierre Pettigrew in Ottowa.
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to changing needs throughout it’s lifetime and we continue to adapt our work in the 
light of changing situations.  Having taken account of the general reduction in levels 
of unemployment, the Fund has repositioned its focus to place an enhanced emphasis 
on projects designed to promote reconciliation and to create the conditions and 
opportunities for wider cross-community contact and dialogue.  This is the direction 
for the future – and it is the subject of particular focus in this year’s Annual Report.  

My term of offi ce as Chairman of the 
Fund ends in February 2005 after a 
period of over 12 years.  The work 
will be carried on by the Board under 
the capable chairmanship of Denis 
Rooney who takes up the post from 
1 March 2005. I wish Denis  every 
success in the important work ahead 
and know that he will fi nd, as I have, 
that he is working with a very able 
and supportive Board.  I would like to 
record my thanks to the members of 
the Board who have worked with me 
over my period as Chairman.

The work of the Fund touches the lives 
of a large number of people in all parts 
of Northern Ireland and the Southern border counties. Without the participation of 
people working in all of those communities our work would not be possible nor would 
we achieve such high levels of success. I would like to acknowledge the contributions 
made by all of those groups and individuals, along with the contributions made by the 
Fund’s development consultants, Agents, and the Secretariat.  I also wish to thank the 
Joint Chairs and all the members of the inter-governmental Advisory Committee who 
support closely the work of the Board and offer helpful guidance on a regular basis.

In concluding my Report for 2004, and my fi nal Report as Chairman of the Fund, 
I wish on behalf of the Board, to thank all those individuals and groups within the 
community, who worked in partnership with the Fund and who made possible the 
progress which the fund has made and its success in meeting its objectives over the years.

William T. McCarter
Chairman

Above: Chairman William 
T. McCarter with Chairman 
designate Denis Rooney.
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Focus on Community Initiatives

Reconciliation, the development of cross-community and cross-border relations 
and education and training were areas which received particular attention from the 
International Fund for Ireland in 2004, as the organisation sought to develop a tighter 
focus on improving the lives of people in Northern Ireland and the six Southern 
border countries.

Since its foundation in 1986, the Fund has taken a multi-faceted approach to 
promoting reconciliation between the communities in Northern Ireland and between 
North and South, as well as promoting social and economic development. However, 
following a comprehensive review of its activities at the end of 2003 the Board of the 
Fund agreed on a renewed and tighter focus on reconciliation and the promotion of 
cross-community and cross-border cooperation.

Central to this renewed focus has been the Communities Initiative, a series of 
programmes specifi cally targeting disadvantage and aimed at helping to develop the 
capacity of communities and individuals to help themselves and to engage with those 
around them.  

The great success of the Fund has been to encourage contact and co-operation 
between communities which had been bitterly divided for decades. Community 
groups have been formed and have worked to transform the social and economic 
conditions in some of the worst trouble spots in Northern Ireland. 

Tangible results from projects under the Communities Initiative include a reduction 
in violence in some traditional fl ashpoint areas and the encouragement of new 
investment and job creation in areas which had been economically destitute for 
decades. 

Amongst the Fund’s ongoing successes has been its support for the Stewartstown 
Road Regeneration Committee, a cross-community group in West Belfast which has 
been highly successful both in reducing tensions in a fl ashpoint area and improving 
social and economic conditions for local residents. The Committee, made up of 
residents from the mainly nationalist Lenadoon estate and the unionist area of 
Suffolk, has already created 25 jobs in an area of high unemployment by developing 
a shopping and offi ce complex which includes community facilities. Next on its 
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list is a development which will provide childcare facilities and further offi ce/retail 
space which could double the number of jobs created. The Committee’s partnership 
approach has also had a positive knock-on effect on community relations along the 
peace line dividing the areas. 

The Stewartstown Road project is a good example of how the Fund has helped to 
make a tangible difference to the lives of people living in troubled areas. It has been a 
catalyst for economic development in a depressed part of West Belfast and the result 
is both the development of social facilities and the promotion of closer co-operation 
between the two local communities

The Fund also prioritises the development of cross-community and cross-border 
links through programmes such as Learning and Educating Together (LET) and 
Knowledge through Enterprise for Youth (KEY), which bring secondary school 
pupils out of their communities, allowing them valuable breathing space in a neutral 
environment where they can mix and enjoy experiences and infl uences they would 
not encounter otherwise. In addition participants have the opportunity to participate 
in simulated business development and enterprise. The success of both of these 
programmes is seen in the reactions of those involved:

Below: KEY Programme 
participants.
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“The strength of this programme is that it is spread throughout a year rather than 
just being a one-off,” said one teacher involved in the programme. “I’ve seen some 
amazing changes in the children - they really remember it for years to come. It is 
fantastic.’ 

Another teacher expressed similar sentiments: “My kids wouldn’t have had the 
opportunity to meet kids from the other part of the community or from down South 
before taking part in LET. It really has changed their perspective – kids are developing 
friendships which continue after they go back to their home environment.

Mixing makes them aware that other kids are just like them – it really opens their 
eyes.”

Participants are also agreed on the programmes’ worth, with 80 percent professing 
a better understanding of other religions and backgrounds as a result of their 
participation. KEY participants also agree overwhelmingly that the enterprise training 
element of the programme has strengthened the link in their minds between success 
at school and their future employment prospects. According to the mother of one 

Above: KEY Programme 
participants.
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participant, KEY was literally a life-changing experience for her son: “He used not to 
care what job he had once he left school – now he’s thinking ‘what will I do?’ which 
he never thought of before.”

The success of both KEY and LET resulted in a decision this year to continue to 
expand the former - it will now cater to 900 pupils per year from 72 schools on both 
sides of the border.

For those outside to scope of KEY and LET, the Wider Horizons Programme 
continues its work in improving the employability of young people from 
disadvantaged areas. As part of its remit the programme encourages participants, aged 
18-28, to look critically at the prejudices of their own community and to appreciate 
how these might contribute to the problems of society in general. Trainees from 
different religious and political backgrounds work together on common projects and 
come to see they have more in common than they might have thought previously. 
Much of this work takes place outside of Ireland – usually in the US or Canada – and 
organisers have found that taking participants out of their usual context can have 
a powerful effect on how they relate to one another. The programme provides an 
invaluable opportunity for those who take part – giving them practical life skills and 
promoting reconciliation through inter-action. 

Left: LET Programme
participants.



14    International Fund for Ireland

The success of KEY, LET and Wider Horizons in working with children and young 
people is mirrored on a broader scale elsewhere under the Communities Initiative, 
such as the Communities in Transition and the Community Bridges Programmes, 
which work to develop pragmatic cross-community programmes addressing issues of 
difference and division. One of the Community Bridges Programme’s key priorities 
is to develop projects that equip marginalised young people with the practical skills, 
knowledge and experience necessary to cope with life in a highly segregated society. 
It also assists groups from one community in Northern Ireland to prepare themselves 
for re-engagement with the other community - such as the Parkside Community 
Association at the Limestone Road interface in north Belfast which has worked 
actively within the nationalist community locally to address sectarian attitudes and 
behaviour. The Concerned Residents of Upper Ardoyne are also working to create 
a permanent peace by undertaking training and capacity building in community 
relations work some two years after the suspension of the Holy Cross dispute at the 
Ardoyne/Glenbryn interface in north Belfast.

Other forward-looking projects to benefi t from Fund support are that of the Spirit 
of Enniskillen Trust, which works with schools and youth organisations to develop 
young, confi dent, articulate leaders with a capacity to promote change in Northern 
Ireland. There is also an increased emphasis on the education system as a whole 
with Fund support for the development of a community confl ict/anti-sectarianism 

Right: LET Programme 
participants.
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dimension to teacher training at the University of Ulster. This will help trainees to 
recognise their own sectarianism and understand how a sectarian society functions, 
and will equip them to deal with incidents and attitudes that might arise in the 
classroom. 

Of course, reconciliation and social development also have economic elements and 
the Fund continued during 2004 to encourage rural and urban renewal and business 
development. The Business Enterprise Programme, which encourages links between 
the Local Enterprise Network in the North and the County Enterprise Boards in the 
Southern border counties supported 33 projects in 2004 which could potentially 
lead to the creation of more than 800 jobs. It also supported a number of innovative 
company and social economy development initiatives, including the development of 
a cross-border business leadership programme and a cross-border project to address 
under-development of trade between micro-enterprises in the Fund target region. 

The Fund continued its success in encouraging other investors to participate in 
worthwhile projects and has levered additional support from private, public and 
community sources which, together with the Fund’s investment of £527m, has 
produced a total investment of over £1.6bn, a leverage of 1:2.16. Fund involvement 
in the formulation and funding of projects continues to be an important catalyst for 
attracting other sources of investment and for creating investor confi dence.

As the Fund looks towards 2005 it will continue it’s focus on healing division and 
encouraging cooperation and understanding on both a cross-community and cross-
border basis. The organisation remains central to creating the conditions for a lasting 
peace in Ireland and is itself a tangible symbol of international support for the peace 
process. 

After 18 years the Fund’s work is, in many ways, more important, its vocation more 
clear and its role more focused than ever before.  



16    International Fund for Ireland

Community Capacity Building

Cumulative Project Approvals to 30 September 2004

UK£103.6m     €150.9m
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Below: A participant in the 
Community Leadership 
Programme receives his 
Certificate in Management 
Practice from the Chairman 
in the presence of  Professor 
Gerry McKenna.

A list of projects approved for assistance under this category during the period 
of the Report appears at Appendix 1.

The grouping of initiatives under this category has been designed and developed 
to provide people, particularly those in the most disadvantaged areas, with 
the skills, resources and self-confi dence to undertake the social and economic 
regeneration of their areas and to reach out to other communities.  It also helps 
young people through training, work experience and personal development to 
enhance their opportunities to enter the labour market or further education.

Community Leadership Programme
The Fund’s Community Leadership Programme is delivered through a consortium 
under the management of LOCUS Management in association with the Management 
Institute of the University of Ulster. This year, 37 groups participated in the 
Community Leadership Programme, (25 from NI and 12 from the Southern border 
counties), each receiving a 1-year package of support including mentoring, training, 
small grant aid, best practice support and an opportunity to participate in networking 
events.

Groups are supported to enhance their skills in  developing, managing and 
implementing small projects ranging from multi-media initiatives to local community 
events. This has had a very positive impact in local communities in terms of enhancing 
group competencies, raising group profi les and increasing participation in local 
community development.  The opportunity to visit other community based initiatives 
that demonstrate best practice has proved to be invaluable to groups in terms of 
inspiring and motivating them and also raising issues of importance in project 
development and management.

The highlight of the year for groups is the annual 
Community Leadership Programme Conference which 
was attended this year by 100 representatives from the 
participant groups, North and South.  Groups report 
that this year’s event focused their attention on:-

• moving away from a grant dependency;
• innovative fund raising;
• the importance of team work;
• the importance of planning;
• the benefi ts of networking; and
• respect for diversity.
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The Chairman with US 
Observer Peggy Noonan (left) 
at a Communities in Transition 
Conference.

The Community Leadership Programme also afforded the opportunity to 40 
individuals to study for a Certifi cate in Management Practice, 30 of whom graduated, 
during the summer, from the University of Ulster, with commendation.

Communities in Transition Programme
The Communities in Transition Programme continued to develop social capital 
programmes in 10 local areas where the issue of weak community infrastructure sits 
alongside community tension, division and marginalisation.  It is delivered on behalf 
of the International Fund for Ireland by the Community Foundation for Northern 
Ireland who raised matching funding to enable the local projects to be supported 
beyond the Fund’s 4-year investment.  

The Programme seeks to build 
relationships within and between 
local communities, promoting 
participation and creating 
community cohesion by offering 
opportunities and support that had 
not previously been available to 
the selected areas. 

Progress in the 10 areas has been 
very steady over this past year with 
some of the areas developing at a 
rapid pace while others continue to 
address very diffi cult local divisions 
and tensions.  Each area has 
undertaken an assessment of need 

followed by the development of local action plans which are now being implemented 
across a range of issues, projects and services.  Signifi cant numbers of local people 
made inputs to this process with new projects being delivered locally and most of the 
local committees engaging in some form of area regeneration.  

To date, 14 new full-time and part-time posts have been created while several 
participants have found work as a result of training undertaken and qualifi cations 
gained.  A total of over £971,000 in additional funds has been levered to date by the 
projects and in the case of the North Cavan Initiative, the support for the project 
enabled a further capital programme of €1.89m to be delivered across 6 projects.
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In an example of the work on-going at local level, the Bridges Group – comprising 
Clady, Innishrush and Portglenone - which is made up of representatives from 
those areas has developed signifi cantly since it was formed in 2002.  The current 
group is cross-community in nature and has a good gender and age balance.

Members have undertaken training on a number of issues, have completed an area 
survey/assessment of need and developed an Action Plan.  
They have opened premises on the Main Street – a neutral venue for the 3 new groups 
involved with the project – and developed several projects in each of the 3 local areas 
as well as within the umbrella Bridges group.  

In addition to their grant from the Communities in Transition Programme, they have 
brought a total of nearly £360,000 into the area for projects.

The Seacourt Community Council in Seacourt Estate, Larne is a community-
led partnership initiative involving local people and representatives from a range of 
agencies. The area had a very troubled history and a very poor reputation in the 
Larne area, but with solid work at local level and the involvement of critical and 
very committed local people, the area has been transformed and a number of very 
successful new initiatives developed. The group enjoys huge voluntary commitment 
and has opened an offi ce which has been equipped to a high standard with access to 
training and facilities for a range of local people.

The Newtowncunningham Community Development Initiative (Co Donegal) is 
a project based in a rural village and was selected as a result of local people feeling that 
agencies and funding bodies had neglected them to date.  They feel their area is in 
decline and in need of regeneration to put a heart back into it.  There is a strong sense 
that people co-exist rather than share their village and that this needs to be redressed.  
There are 3 distinct communities competing for the same resources, and the project 
is working to create a more strategic approach to meet their collective needs.  The 
committee comprises representatives from all interests and is cross-community in 
nature with a good gender balance.  They now have a very busy offi ce on the Main 
Street and provide a range of resource services and training opportunities.

Since the project began it has brought a total of €164,000 into the area from a range 
of sources, in addition to their grant from the Communities in Transition Programme. 
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The ‘Supporting Transition’ Initiative – a Peacebuilding Initiative - A further 
exciting aspect of the Communities in Transition Programme was developed earlier 
this year and involves an additional 12 selected projects working on dedicated 
peace-building initiatives.  Each of the 12 projects involves groups from different 
backgrounds, interests and aspirations working together to deliver projects that 
will contribute to changing perceptions and breaking down barriers to progress.  
They include cross-border groups, single-identity groups working to build new 
relationships, victims groups, groups of young people and ethnic minority groups.  
The learning arising from this programme will help to formulate new policy and 
practice on very sensitive and diffi cult issues.

Community Bridges Programme
The Community Bridges Programme is designed to build on the community relations, 
reconciliation and cross-border ethos of the Fund with an emphasis on promoting the 
capacity of people to address issues of difference and division directly.

From the outset the Community Bridges Programme has had as its objectives the 
support and development of projects that are innovative and ground-breaking.  The 
Programme actively seeks out potential new projects in new geographical areas, 
using new approaches to tackling contentious issues and assisting in the design and 
development of pragmatic programmes.

Under the Programme, priority is given to work at interface areas of confl ict both 
urban and rural which will develop practical and enduring community relations and 
cross-borders partnerships.  The Programme maintains a critical analysis of current 
community relations policy and practice in Northern Ireland and cross-border 
development on the island of Ireland, which allows the Programme to identify gaps in 
existing provision and deploy resources into projects with an intrinsic strategic value.

Since the inception of the Programme in 1996, the Fund has supported 116 projects 
amounting to a total of over £13,687,000 in grant aid.  In 2004 the Community 
Bridges Programme supported 16 projects representing nearly £3m of grant aid. 
Examples include:-

The Parkside Community Association is a small community development 
organisation located within a small nationalist area at the Limestone Road interface in 
north Belfast.  The Association with technical assistance from the Community Bridges 
Programme developed a single community approach to creating stability and peace 
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within the district. It also seeks to address sectarian attitudes and behaviour, begin to 
equip the community with the necessary skills and knowledge to engage with their 
unionist neighbours and other unionist communities and start to address quality of life 
issues which result from the interface environment.  

The Concerned Residents of Upper Ardoyne (CRUA) recently benefi tted from a 
grant of £30,690 towards the costs of a 12-month preparatory programme aimed at 
building capacity within the organisation and wider community to begin the process 
of creating a permanent peace and stability.  

A key priority of the Programme is to develop projects that equip marginalised young 
people with the practical skills, knowledge and formative experiences for life in a 
sectarian and highly segregated society.

The Spirit of Enniskillen Trust which began in 1989 was inspired by the dignity 
of response that arose from the Enniskillen bombing tragedy (1987) and the wish, 
in a deeply divided and contested society, for increased understanding between all 
social, cultural and political traditions.  The Trust has developed a particular expertise 
in producing young confi dent, articulate and skilled leaders with the capacity to be 
advocates and technicians for change in Northern Ireland’s society.  The grant of 
£158,000 from the Community Bridges Programme will allow for concentrated and 
sustained work within specifi c school and youth organisations over the next three years.

Left: Pictured at the launch 
of  the Shankill Parish 
Caring Association Jethro
project in Lurgan are ( back 
row left to right ) Bishop 
Harold Miller
Bishop of  Down and 
Dromore, Wilfred Young 
Priorities Fund, David 
Trimble MP
MLA, Rev Dr Maurice Elliott 
and Bishop John McAreavy.
( front row left to right ) the 
Chairman, Lord Carey of  
Clifton, Secretary
of  State Paul Murphy MP 
and Ald David Simpson MLA 
Mayor of  Craigavon.
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Right: A Wider Horizons 
trainee at work experience 
in Canada.

In addition a grant award of £123,000 to the School of Education at the University 
of Ulster will establish a community confl ict/sectarianism dimension into the core 
curriculum of initial teacher education. It will equip teachers with the ability to 
respond in a challenging way to sectarian incidents within the classroom and to 
proactively display and model key skills and qualities to young people in a school 
environment.

New Border Generation is a local community organisation providing youth and 
community programmes as well as coherent cross-border projects in Carlingford 
and in the wider Cooley Peninsula area in County Louth.  The organisation has 
established signifi cant relationships with locally based community organisations in 
Northern Ireland, particularly around interface districts in Belfast. The group has 
recently launched a community network which is providing leadership, business and 
community confl ict resolution training as well as developing long-term sustainable 
cross-border/cross-community youth projects.

Wider Horizons Programme
The Wider Horizons Programme is a training and work experience programme which 
targets disadvantaged young people between the ages of 18 and 28.  The Programme 
which is project oriented provides accredited training, work experience and personal 
development at home and abroad.  Of equal importance is the Programme’s emphasis 
on fostering mutual understanding and reconciliation which is central to all projects 
and permeates all aspects of the training.  
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A typical Wider Horizons group comprises participants drawn equally from the 2 traditions 
in the North and young people from Ireland.  Each project usually lasts 20 weeks and 
is divided into 3 stages.  The fi rst stage is a preparation phase and includes training in 
vocational skills, mutual understanding, confl ict resolution, team building and personal 
development. Stage two normally includes work experience in an overseas location as well as 
continuing to address issues of mutual understanding and personal development.  The third 
stage involves completing vocational qualifi cations and developing job search skills to make 
application for jobs or further training/education courses.

The Fund has committed itself to supporting specifi c geographical areas which are 
effected by unemployment and disadvantage.  The Integrated Areas are built on the 
concept of partnership with the local community and other groups coming together 
on a cross-community and cross-border basis.  These partnerships recruit participants 
and deliver the Wider Horizons Programme in their areas, with the support of the 
managing agents.

There are currently 6 Integrated Area partnerships:

Belfast/Tallaght (Dublin) managed by Springboard Opportunities Ltd, Co 
Londonderry/Donegal managed by Border Horizons Ltd, Tyrone/Donegal managed 
by Tyrone Donegal Partnership Ltd, Fermanagh/Sligo/Leitrim managed by FSL 
Ltd, Monaghan and Portadown managed by MAPP Ltd and Armagh/Down/Louth 
managed by ADL Horizons Ltd.

The second strand is the ‘Open Access’ approach, which provides scope for involving 
young people who, for various reasons, cannot readily access programmes delivered by 
the Integrated Areas.  It allows for a focus on specifi c client groups or sectors that have 
particular needs or diffi culties and may be of a specialist or innovative nature. 

2004 Projects
In 2004, 45 projects took place and approximately 950 young people joined the 
programme. The Integrated Areas were responsible for 43 of the projects and 2 took 
place under the ‘Open Access’ approach; 24 involved overseas placements in Canada, 
10 in USA, 10 to European destinations and one to South Africa.  There was a notable 
increase in the use of destinations within the European Union.

A new Integrated Area, Fermanagh/Sligo/Leitrim has just recently been established 
and started its activity in February 2004 with a Tourism and Hospitality Programme 
to Orlando, Florida.  In conjunction with the Hilton Hotel Group, incorporating 
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the Doubletree Guest Suites, a group of young people set out from Enniskillen for 
a period of 10 weeks for work placements in the ‘sunshine state’.  With the Hilton 
boasting almost 1000 rooms and the Doubletree boasting over 220 suites, these 
placements gave the participants the opportunity to experience working in hotels of 
the very highest standard.  With its world-class leader status in terms of customer care 
and service, the placements provided an excellent learning opportunity and source of 
experience for the 18 young people from across Sligo, Leitrim and Fermanagh.
Expressions of appreciation from past participants include:-

• “I thought the whole programme was brilliant. I wish I could do it again”.

• “It is a great opportunity and a very good experience to be able to live and work 
abroad”.

• “I developed excellent teamwork and leadership skills and indeed became more 
confi dent and independent. The adventure is something I will never forget”.

Business Planning in 2004
This year saw the beginning of a business planning process and strategic planning for 
the Integrated Area partnerships.  The importance of this is the requirement for the 
Partnerships to prepare annual business plans detailing their proposed projects and 
fi nancial expenditure.  

This process provides a more structured approach to the planning and management 
of the Programme.  The advantage is that it provides greater transparency and gives a 
better overview of the programme and how it is achieving its aims and objectives. 
Indications are that participants completing the Programme have achieved recognised 
qualifi cations and certifi cation in both vocational and mutual understanding and 
reconciliation, along with valuable work experience overseas to enable them to apply 
and gain employment in various sectors of industry.

The annualised approach also gives the Integrated Area partnerships an opportunity to 
provide feedback to the Fund on all aspects of the Programme.

The managing agents for the Wider Horizons Programme,  are in Northern Ireland 
the Department for Employment and Learning (DEL) and in Ireland Foras Aiseanna 
Saothair (FAS).
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KEY (Knowledge through Enterprise for Youth) Programme
In May 2004, another 600 students graduated from the very successful KEY 
Programme, bringing the total number of graduates since 1999 to 2100.  Participants 
aged 14-16, drawn from 48 schools across Northern Ireland and the Southern border 
counties, were applauded by their parents, teachers and guests, Eddie McVeigh, of the 
European Commission offi ce in Belfast and Brody Sweeney of O’Brien’s Sandwich 
Bars. Participants had been involved in KEY for 14 days involving four residentials at 
centres in County Down and County Donegal.

Six Young Entrepreneurs of the Year were rewarded for a year of hard work 
and stunning progress with a trip to participate in a CANJAC (Canadian Junior 
Achievement) Conference in Saskatoon, Saskatchewan during the summer break.  One 
of the lucky 6 commented -

We had a mighty time over there meeting all kinds of people from different parts 
of the world, Canjac was a great experience, I learned loads and am seriously 
considering starting up my own business and I would really love to thank anyone 
who had anything to do with getting me away to Canada.

Left: KEY Young 
entrepreneurs of  the year 
with (left to right) Eddie Mc 
Veigh Head of  European 
Union Representation in 
Northern Ireland, Brody 
Sweeney Chief  Executive 
O’Brien’s Irish Sandwich 
Bars Ltd, the Chairman 
and Professor Ken O’Neill 
Chairman of  Young 
Enterprise Northern Ireland.
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The independent annual programme evaluation has demonstrated excellent results -

• 99% of participants would recommend the Programme to their friends.
• 95% of respondents thought that the programme was either excellent or 

very good.
• The percentage of participants agreeing or strongly agreeing with the 

statement ‘I know what I want from life’ increased from 72% to 83% 
following participation. 

• The percentage of participants agreeing or strongly agreeing with the 
statement ‘What happens in the future depends on me’ increased from 80% to 
92%.

• Teachers saw some dramatic changes in terms of maturity, confi dence and 
motivation.  

• Upon completion of the programme, 80% of participants strongly agreed 
or agreed that they now have a greater understanding of other religions and 
backgrounds.

• After the programme 90% of participants said that they had friends from a 
different religion compared with 70% prior to being involved in KEY.  

• After the programme 81% of participants compared with 72% at the start 
would not mind if a teacher of another religion taught them.

• 78% participants after the programme, compared with 65% at the start would 
not mind if a relative were to marry someone of another religion.

• 93% of participants after the programme agreed or strongly agreed that they 
can now see a link between doing well at school and getting a good job.

• Parents identifi ed improved clarity and motivation with regard to their child’s 
interest in school, sitting exams and occupational choice as outcomes of the 
programme.  They were very happy with the practical, job seeking skills aspect 
of the programme.

• Teachers thought that the programme was helpful in focusing attention, 
improving motivation and attendance, broadening horizons and increasing 
awareness of career options.

Evaluation is important in ensuring the Programme’s continuous improvement and 
ascertaining if it continues to meet its aims.  In addition to tracking the attitudinal 
and skill change in participants, opinions are elicited from teachers and parents 
through focus groups and group interviews.  Parents and teachers made the following 
observations:-
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“My lad loved the business element, selling his own product.  It’s great for them to 
be given a stake of money and to manage it and turn it into more money – that’s 
a good learning experience.  I think it’s too early to say (about business start-up), 
he knows now abut money management, overheads, making a profi t, so if he ever 
did want to start his own business at least he’s aware, a bit more clued in.”

Mother 

“One of my girls you could see was very excited by this idea of starting a business 
so she started up a breakfast club in school.  She set up her costs, got her materials 
and that all sprang from KEY.  She brought the idea to me, we sat down and did 
a business plan and got it approved by the Principal.”
        Teacher

“Down the years I have been on at him to get his own thing going, trying to give 
him ideas but all that I have spent in 16 years he has far more interest in the bit 
of time and the ideas he got here.  I’m not a teacher but I have tried hard to get 
it across to him but this Programme has gotten through to him, don’t ask me why 
but it defi nitely has jizzed him up a bit.”

Father

Above: KEY Programme 
participants.
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“She loved the last week and really wanted to go back again. She was away 
in England the week before and she talked more about KEY than that. She 
thought the Business Creation Week was very good.  She was kind of chuffed 
with herself ‘cause she came up with the name for the product.  She was big into 
the selling and making money, much more that I thought she would be because 
she can be lazy.”

Father 

“The day of the actual selling they were quite apprehensive about standing up but 
once they got their fi rst sale you could see the confi dence going up and when they 
fi nished the amount of them coming back saying ‘God I didn’t think I could’ve 
done that’.  That increase in self esteem impacts on other areas like behaviour in 
school.”         

Teacher

Below: KEY Young 
Entrepreneurs of  the Year 
at a CANJAC (Canadian Junior 
Achievement) Conference in 
Saskatoon, Saskatchewan in 
2004.
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The peace and reconciliation objective of the Programme provides some schools 
with their only opportunity to mix with young people from other traditions and 
backgrounds.  Naturally this creates nervousness and an initial reliance on symbols to 
establish identity.  However, all teachers reported that after the fi rst residential there is 
a lot of interaction and even discussion about cultural symbols such as football shirts, 
which facilitated greater understanding.  Most teachers mentioned the friendships 
created on the Programme, some of which appear to be durable over time and 
distance.

“From the young people’s perspective the group got on fabulously.  The focus is not 
on enterprise so much as on their relationships together.  The aims and objectives 
are met but the relationship between the kids is actually the most important part 
in my view.”

Teacher 

“In my school before they went away they probably wouldn’t have met or spoken to 
anyone from the other side of the community so the impact was big on them. …It 
was great to see them mixing.”

       Teacher

“I brought 6 troubled students and I’ve had considerably less bother with them this 
year and it could be because you’re away from school and they’re seeing me in a 
different light and I’m responding to that.  I was always on their back and they 
saw me in that way and I think they’ve come through the Programme well and 
I’m pleased with their progress.”

Teacher 

“My kids wouldn’t have had the opportunity to meet kids from the other part of the 
community or from down South and when they came back they said ‘They were 
all right, they were dead on.’…It’s ignorance, if they haven’t met Catholics or 
Protestants before they haven’t had the experience but once they meet it’s ok.  To 
begin with we had a rule of no football shirts but the kids came to us about it and 
we agreed to change it so they could wear what they like.  That created banter, 
good-natured but no hassle.”

Teacher

The KEY Programme continues to grow and strengthen.  In September 2004 a third 
centre in County Fermanagh was ontroduced to allow a further 300 students per year 
to participate, bringing the total to 900 students from 72 schools North and South 
for 2004.
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LET (Learning and Educating Together) Programme
Lack of enterprise awareness, fi nancial and economic illiteracy and leaving school early 
are all problems facing young people that can perpetuate the cycle of unemployment 
in some areas in Ireland.  Segregation at home and in school continues to perpetuate 
the community divisions in a sectarian society.

To break this cycle, Young Enterprise NI and Junior Achievement Ireland have 
developed the cross-community/cross-border LET Programme to intervene in the 
development of 12-13 year olds across the North and the border counties of the 
South.

“We want to get to students before we have to intervene at a level of crisis 
management”, says Fiona McCabe, Manager of the LET Programme.  “The KEY 
Programme is successfully helping students on the verge of leaving school to 
understand the importance of gaining qualifi cations.  We are now applying those 
principles to students aged 12-13, ensuring they get an even better head start on a 
successful future.”

Below: Outdoor activities 
at a KEY camp.
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LET is operating from Ballintoy on the North coast and is bringing together 30 
schools in groups of three, drawn from nationalist, unionist and border county areas.  
Each group is meeting over a series of three camps, in total nine days of intensive 
enterprise training throughout the school year.

Students participate in a range of outdoor pursuits from canoeing to archery. 
They also explore the importance of good 
communication, personal fi nance and budgeting, 
business planning and the impact of business on 
the environment.  Interactive workshops, role-
plays and practical simulations bring the world 
of business to life and promote entrepreneurship 
as a tangible and realisable goal.

The Programme runs from October to May 
and culminates in an educational and fun 
one-day intercultural visit to Dublin where 
students explore the Dublinia medieval city 
exhibition, meet the Vikings and tour the 
famous Dublin sights.

Left and below: LET 
Programme participants.
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Regeneration of  Deprived Areas

Cumulative Project Approvals to 30 September 2004

UK£136.2m   €198.5m
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A list of projects approved for assistance under this category during the period 
of the Report appears at Appendix 2.

The grouping of initiatives under this category provides a focus for the 
Fund’s activities in the most disadvantaged areas in Northern Ireland and the 
Southern border counties.  It includes, in Northern Ireland, the Community 
Regeneration Improvement Special Programme (CRISP) and the Community 
Economic Regeneration Scheme (CERS), both of which attract co-funding 
from the Department for Social Development, the Border Towns and Villages 
Scheme (BTV) which operates in the Southern border counties and the Rural 
Development Programme (RDP) which operates in Northern Ireland, normally 
with partnership funding from the Rural Development Council (RDC), and 
in the Southern border counties. In Northern Ireland the Department of 
Agriculture and Rural Development also plays a key role in the Programme. 
There is also provision to identify and support projects of ‘special’ merit which 
meet the Fund’s objectives and priorities but for which there is no specifi c 
programme of support.

Community Regeneration Improvement Special Programme (CRISP)
The Community Regeneration Improvement Special Programme (CRISP) was 
introduced in 1990 to encourage a partnership approach to regeneration and 
reconciliation in the most disadvantaged villages and small towns in Northern Ireland.  
Since its introduction 
CRISP has made a 
signifi cant revitalising 
impact with disused 
and derelict properties 
being brought back 
into commercial use 
and improvements 
being made to the 
physical environment.  
Local communities 
have been inspired 
with renewed hope 
and confi dence leading  
to the stimulation of 
substantial private 

Below: The completed 
CRISP scheme at Forkhill 
County Armagh.
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sector investment, the creation of new jobs and the encouragement of a new spirit of 
cross-community co-operation.

No new applications were approved in the year ended 30 September 2004 and CRISP 
is now closed to applications. One current application is awaiting consideration early 
in 2005.

Since CRISP was introduced, 78 schemes have been approved involving joint Fund/
Government funding of over £78m.

Border Towns and Villages Programme (BTV)
The Border, Towns and Villages Programme, had another successful year in 2004, 
with more than £1.3 million allocated to projects in the six Southern border bounties. 
In many cases this money will support projects which encourage people of both 
communities to work together towards the development of a core economic project 
for their area. 

Below: Children waiting to 
welcome Irish President Mary 
McAleese at Manorcunningham 
County Donegal.
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The Fund was one of the fi rst organisations to recognise the need to direct funding 
into the Southern border counties, to reverse the economic decline which had resulted 
from such areas being cut off from their natural hinterland. 

Through the Border Towns and Villages Programme, the Fund has pioneered support 
for community-led economic developments in the Southern border region. Over 
€20 million has been committed to date, with this support successfully delivering 
community led projects which generate economic activity, create jobs and help retain 
populations in isolated areas of the Southern border counties. 

The Fund supported six projects under the Border Towns and Villages Programme in 
2004 including:

• a proposal to establish an innovation centre in Gweedore Business Park, Co. 
Donegal. When completed the innovation centre will include on-site business 
development support services, as well as training facilities for use by the local 
community.  

• support for the construction of an interpretative centre in Carrick-on-Shannon, Co. 
Leitrim, which will lead to the creation of local employment opportunities.  This 
facility will capitalise on growth in tourism numbers in the area thanks largely to the 
continuing attraction of the Fund supported Shannon-Erne Waterway as a cruiser 
holiday destination.

• the conversion of a derelict building in Moville Co. Donegal into an auditorium 
and conference centre, which will be rented and also used socially by the local 
community.

• grant assistance towards the provision of lettable studio workspace for emerging 
artists, a gift shop to sell their art work and a coffee shop. This will complement the 
proposed Highlanes Gallery in Drogheda, Co. Louth and the initiative will generate 
direct local employment for a signifi cant number of people.

Rural Development Programme (RDP)
The Fund, in conjunction with the Department of Agriculture and Rural 
Development (DARD) through the Programme for Building Sustainable Prosperity 
Measure 4.12, operates the Sustainability & Marketing project.  Its aim is to help 
ensure, as far as possible, the long-term viability of projects jointly funded by the 
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Fund and DARD under the previous Rural Development Programme 1994-99.  This 
is achieved through a structured and individually tailored programme of mentoring 
support, focusing on the business, management and marketing strategies of each 
project, which is delivered by consultants who are engaged to work with individual 
groups.  As at 30 September 2004, 15 projects were participating in the Programme.

The Rural Retail Support Programme is funded jointly by the International Fund 
for Ireland and the Northern Ireland Rural Development Council (RDC) through 
the EU Peace II Programme.  The programme aims to support the retention and 
development of retail services in rural areas.

The local rural shop is recognised as having a central role to play in the commercial 
and social viability of local communities.  These shops provide a social point for the 
local population and assist in providing and engendering a sense of community.  By 
encouraging the development of the rural retail sector, communities benefi t from 
improved access to services and a strengthened rural economy. 

The Programme was designed to help rural retailers improve viability by encouraging 
and contributing to an agreed level of development support and training.  

Celebrating the success of  the 
Rural Retail Programme are 
(left to right) Raymond Crea, 
Northern Ireland Post Office; 
Caroline Breakey, Chairperson 
RDC; Helen Kirkpatrick Board 
Member and Tom Sherry, 
DARD.
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A total of 62 rural retailers from across Northern Ireland were invited to participate in 
a pilot initiative. Among those participating were Gortnaghey Community Association 
near Dungiven in Co Londonderry. 

Gortnaghey Community Shops Initiative - Gortnaghey is a small but energetic 
community located some 4 miles from Dungiven.  The community created an 
association to address the social and economic needs of the area and among their 
objectives was the reopening of the local shop which had been closed for almost a year 
leaving the community feeling more isolated and deprived due to the lack of essential 
services.  The reopening of the local shop restored one essential service and provides a 
focal point for the community.

Rather than suffering the consequences of the loss of a vital service, the group has 
taken advantage of the opportunity to regenerate essential retail services to the 
community and also to create the potential for local employment opportunities.

The Rural Retail Support Programme has allowed the group to access the necessary 
expertise to assist in the development of a business plan. Its place in the programme 
has also enabled the group to learn with other established participants and provides 
further opportunities for networking and developing new relationships. 

Investing in Rural Communities - Rural areas across Northern Ireland continue to 
benefi t from the developing partnership between the Fund and the RDC.  

This dual approach offered by the Fund and RDC, which utilises measures from 
within both the EU Peace II and Building Sustainable Prosperity (BSP) Programmes, 
has enabled many communities to take the next crucial step towards building a more 
sustainable and economic rural environment.

Examples of local communities turning their plans into reality include Loughgiel 
Community Association and Broughderg Area Development Association Limited. 

Loughgiel Community Association Ltd - is in a rural area situated 10 miles 
from Ballymoney, Co. Antrim. Limited access to jobs, poor services and lack of 
community facilities motivated the community into taking action.  Working together 
the community embraced these many challenges and in the year 2000 successfully 
launched the Loughgiel Millennium Centre – a purpose built community facility 
incorporating sports hall, business units and a telecentre.
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Building on the success of this venture the community identifi ed the need for 
additional workspace provision which was developed with the support of the Fund, 
the RDC and the local community.  This new project will complement the existing 
development, help create a further 14 new jobs locally and contribute to the overall 
sustainability of the community. 

Broughderg Area Development Association - Broughderg Area Development 
Association represents a dispersed and isolated rural community of 350 people located 

on the outskirts of Cookstown, Co. 
Tyrone. 

The Association has worked since 1998 
to regenerate the area and to make 
a real difference to community life.  
With assistance from the Fund, the 
RDC, the Community Fund, Omagh 
District Council and the community the 
group opened their new community, 
service centre in December 2003.  
The building, which previously was a 
derelict church, now comprises meeting 
and training facilities, lettable offi ce 
space, business units and a community 
hall.  The provision of lettable space 

has allowed the relocation of the post offi ce to the building and with the help of the 
Rural Retail Support Programme a much-needed retail component has been added 
enabling essential goods and services to be provided locally. As well as being the home 
of the fi rst local youth club, ICT training is high on the agenda and a full programme 
of events, including ECDL and CLAIT training has begun. With the programme of 
activities and services now available, this project truly has made a difference and is now 
very much at the heart of the community. 

Special Projects
A number of projects of particular merit that contribute towards the Fund’s overall 
objectives and for which there is no specifi c funding programme were offered support 
during the year.  These include:-

Creggan Community Café and Catering Ltd – received £69,000 towards the 
provision of a 3,000 sq ft community-owned café and catering enterprise within the 

Above: The official opening of  
the Broughderg community 
service centre in county 
Tyrone.
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existing St Mary’s Community Centre in the Creggan Estate, Derry.  The project 
will create jobs in this area of very high unemployment and contribute to the physical 
regeneration of a prominent site.

Stewartstown Road Regeneration Project Ltd – received £400,000 towards the 
construction of 10,000 sq ft of additional retail units, offi ce accommodation and space 
for a new commercial child-care facility.  The project will be developed adjacent to 
the Fund assisted Community Economic Resource Centre on the ‘peace line’ at the 
Stewartstown Road which separates the Suffolk and Lenadoon Estates in West Belfast.  
The provision of shared space and local services for use on a cross-community basis 
will further the economic, social and physical regeneration of this very disadvantaged 
interface area.

Below left: The Chairman with 
Candian Observer Cameron 
Millikin at the launch of  the 
Monkstown Community Forum 
project in Newtownabbey.
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Economic Development

Cumulative Project Approvals to 30 September 2004

UK£287.4m   €418.7m
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A list of projects approved for assistance under this category during the period 
of the Report appears at Appendix 3.

The initiatives under this category are designed to strengthen the economic 
base by stimulating local enterprise and self-employment and encouraging the 
growth of small and medium sized companies (SMEs), encouraging technical 
innovation, especially in product development and marketing methods, 
encouraging tourism and providing support for the regeneration of derelict 
properties for commercial purposes in towns and villages.  The Fund’s support 
for a number of major Flagship projects and its two Investment Companies is 
included in this category.

Business Enterprise & Technology Programme
The principal aim of this Programme is the creation of conditions within which 
enterprise and business opportunities can fl ourish within Northern Ireland and the 
Southern border counties.  

The Programme actively encourages links between the Local Enterprise Network 
in the North and the County Enterprise Boards in the Southern border counties. 
The purpose of establishing these links is to secure a comprehensive, controlled and 
cohesive approach to assist small locally focused businesses that generally do not have 
a direct relationship with the respective state agencies.
 
The Business Enterprise Programme 
has been, and continues to be, very 
successful, in delivering projects 
against the Fund’s objectives.  The 
33 projects supported in 2004 
should lead to the creation of over 
800 jobs throughout the Fund’s 
designated area.  

A key area of activity is the 
Business Enterprise Workspace 
Programme, which supports 
non-profi t taking community 
businesses by stimulating and 
supporting the provision of a 

Below: The chairman with 
(left to Right) Eddie McVeigh, 
head of  European Union 
Representation in Northern 
Ireland; David McMahon, 
Castle Glass and Glazing; 
Duncan Pollock, Chairman 
Castlederg and District 
Development Association 
at the official opening of  
the extension to Castlederg 
Enterprise Centre, County 
Tyrone.
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broad range of workspace where demand has been established and market failure has 
been demonstrated.  There has been a gradual change of emphasis from basic starter 
workspace to accommodation of a higher specifi cation to provide suitable facilities for 
emerging technology.  

This aspect of the Programme continues to be a major success with 20 projects 
(North and South) supported during the year, providing a total of almost 245,000 
sq ft of workspace with the potential to employ more than 600 people.  The Fund’s 
investment of approximately £4.3m has levered a total investment in the region of 
£11.5m. 

Projects supported in the North include the development of workspace units in 
key areas such as East Belfast, West Belfast and Craigavon.  In Carrickfergus the 
construction of 19,000 sq ft high specifi cation offi ce space will generate up to 100 
new tech jobs in an area that has experienced major job losses in recent times.  In 
the Southern border counties, projects include the development of a new business 
technology building in Clones to facilitate the development of new industry in a 
peripheral border location, support for a food centre in Drumshanbo through the 
re-development of a vacant factory and the provision of additional workspace in 
Bailieborough and Ardee to enable entrepreneurs to remain in the local area.

The Programme has also supported 
a number of innovative company 
and social economy development 
initiatives including:

•  the development of a cross 
border business leadership 
programme. The aim of this 
programme is to develop the 
leadership capability of local 
business people, facilitate their 
involvement in community 
development, identify the 
economic benefi ts of interaction 
between participants and encourage 
the involvement of non state 
supported businesses in local 
economic and social development;

Below: Enterprise Minister 
Barry Gardiner MP (right) with 
(left to right) Carmel Lynch, 
IFI Board Member; Dr Billy 
Kyle, Chairman Irvinestown 
Trustee Enterprise Company 
(ITEC) and Cllr Gerry McHugh, 
Chairman Fermanagh District 
Council at the official opening 
of  the new ITEC workspace 
project outside Irvinestown 
County Fermanagh.
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• support towards an environmental project in the East Border region to 
strengthen SMEs and make them more competitive through a process of eco-
design that will reduce the environmental impact of their product without 
compromising functionality, quality, technical feasibility or cost;

• investment in a cross border project to address the under-development 
of trade between the micro enterprise sector in Northern Ireland and the 
Southern border counties.  The project comprises a portfolio of business 
development support programmes designed to assist businesses displaying 
entrepreneurial fl air, but who do not have access to a continuous programme 
of support; and     

• continuing support towards the very successful US based Ron Brown and 
AMBIT intensive management development programmes for SME businesses 
from both sides of the border.

The Business Enterprise Programme has secured a wide geographical range and 
diverse mix of projects.  Through this Programme the Fund continues to be 
particularly effective by targeting resources on areas of disadvantage, with at least 75% 
of monies allocated to such recognised areas.

newradiane (Research and Development between Ireland and North America 
or Europe)
The newradiane programme was the main focus of the technology element of the 
Business Enterprise and Technology Programme during 2004. At the time of writing, 
newradiane is a pilot programme aimed at helping local companies undertake product 
and process development projects in partnership with another company. 

Applications to the Programme are considered from companies in the Manufacturing 
and Internationally Tradeable Services sectors.  newradiane offers grant assistance 
of up to €100,000 or £65,000 for companies in Northern Ireland. The company 
partners can be located in the United States, Canada, Australia and New Zealand or in 
a European Union Member State.  Partnerships between companies North and South 
of the border are also eligible as are joint ventures between companies in Northern 
Ireland and partners in Great Britain.

newradiane provides assistance to local companies in three phases.  Phase 1 offers 
fi nancial assistance towards the identifi cation of suitable partners and the establishment 
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of the technical and fi nancial feasibility of the project and partnership. Phase 2 helps 
defi ne the requirements of the main R&D project, which is then implemented with 
further fi nancial support under Phase 3.  

For the year end 30 September 2004, newradiane support has been offered to a total 
of 14 companies to undertake partner identifi cation and project defi nition work in a 
wide range of technologies including Software, Biotechnology, Engineering and Food 
Technology. Project implementation assistance was provided for seven projects. In 
fi nancial terms, £475,000 of assistance was approved for Northern Ireland projects 
levering £587,000 of R&D expenditure by industry with €100,000 approved in the 
Southern border counties levering some €184,500 from industry. 

Companies awarded assistance under Phases 1 and 2 were seeking to develop 
partnerships with counterparts in America, Australia, New Zealand and throughout 
Europe. Currently there are three projects between companies based in Northern 
Ireland and partners in Great Britain. 

Tourism Programme
The objective of the Tourism Programme is to encourage economic regeneration 
by stimulating private sector investment in the provision and upgrading of tourist 
accommodation and amenities and by supporting marketing initiatives and initiatives 
designed to develop further the existing human resources in the tourism sector.  The 
programme focuses on tourism projects which demonstrate a capacity to create and 
stimulate employment, encourage cross-border and cross-community activities, and 
are both economically and environmentally sustainable.

Marketing Initiatives - There are currently two Tourism Development Action 
Plans (TDAP) being developed, the St Patrick’s Christian Heritage and the Historic 
Gateway City of Londonderry.  The primary objective is to strengthen the local 
economy through developing tourism and providing the visitor with a unique 
experience within the context of Ireland.

The focus of the St Patrick’s Christian Heritage will be six key themes, including 
St Patrick’s Trail, Visitor Servicing and Events and cross-border linkages.  An action 
plan to deliver the key themes has been drawn together and a partnership of key 
stakeholders will oversee this project.  Work will commence at the end of 2004.
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The aim of the Londonderry TDAP is to assist a major project “the Walled City 
of Derry” developing the economy at local level, improving relationships across 
communities in developing the tourism infrastructure and enhancing the confi dence 
of the local people in the area.  The Project will include visitor interpretation, lighting, 
the Story of Derry and environmental improvements around Derry’s Walls.

Business Tourism - The purpose of this scheme is to bring conferences to Northern 
Ireland that would otherwise have taken place in other global locations. The scheme 
has provided funding towards seven major conferences including Building Bridges, 
GEM, Healing Divisions and Managing Urban Spaces.  Together all 7 conferences 
will generate £3m in economic benefi t in addition to promoting Northern Ireland as 
a suitable conference destination.  This will signifi cantly increase visitor numbers and 
tourism revenue.

The Visitor Attraction Improvement Scheme aims to improve and upgrade existing 
visitor attractions to ensure the visitors’ expectations are met.  This year the Fund 
has supported the interpretation of the costume exhibition at Springhill House.  This 
exhibition is a unique registered collection within Ireland spanning some 300 years of 
Irish history.  Several objectives will be achieved through the delivery of this project 
including the upgrade of scope and quality of the exhibition to the visitor, accessible 

Above: Pictured at the official 
opening of  the refurbished 
Kilmorey Arms Hotel Kilkeel 
County Down are (left to 
right) Deputy Manager, Ceara 
Colghan; Kilmorey Arms 
Chairman, Gordon Coulter; 
NITB Chairman, Tom McGrath; 
Board Member, Helen 
Kirkpatrick and hotel manager 
Peter Houston.
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facilities for visitors with disabilities and the provision of a viable and sustainable 
product that is well positioned to service national and international markets.

Human Resource Development Initiatives (HRD)
Chef Development Programme - Following the success of last year’s programme, 
a further Chef Development Initiative was launched in 2004.  The programme was 
aimed at young chefs mainly in rural areas in the North and Southern border counties, 
introducing them to the latest culinary trends and techniques as well as raising their 
business management capability.  It is a unique programme, benefi cial to the growth 
of tourism within the Fund’s area.

Business Excellence Programme ‘Profi t through Productivity’ comprises a 
comprehensive programme of business support expressly designed to help smaller 
businesses in the tourism, hospitality and leisure industries to measure up against 
international best practice, and then to adopt these new ideas to improve their 
performance.  Twenty fi ve small and micro sized businesses participated in this 
Programme.

Product Development
The Guesthouse and Bed and Breakfast Upgrading and Re-development 
Scheme - This scheme has attracted a number of successful applications from within 
a wide area covered by the Fund.  The aim of the scheme is to improve the physical 
and operational quality of Guesthouses and B&Bs, create viable and sustainable 
products that are well positioned to service national and international markets, spread 
economic benefi ts of tourism to rural areas including the potential of increasing direct 
employment and to promote best practice sustainable tourism.

Youth Hostel Scheme - The purpose of this Scheme is to improve and upgrade all 
existing registered hostels in Northern Ireland and the six Southern border counties. 
A number of applications have been approved during this year with projects ranging 
from provision of accommodation for the disabled to assistance for refurbishment 
thereby increasing the number of bedspaces.

Single Rural Self-Catering Scheme - Several offers have been made under this 
scheme during this period. This scheme aims to bring previously inhabited cottages in 
rural areas back into tourism use whilst preserving as much of their original character 
as possible. Three of the properties assisted under the scheme are located in areas of 
social need.
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Urban Development Programme
The aim of the Urban Development Programme, which closed to applications in 
February 2004, was to stimulate viable economic activity in towns and villages 
throughout Northern Ireland.  It did this by providing grant assistance to bring vacant 
and derelict property into economic use.  The Programme focused on the commercial 
area, as designated by the Fund, of towns and villages together with main arterial 
routes.

The fact that most dereliction occurs in the most deprived areas means that this 
programme has been particularly effective in directing funds towards locations 
designated as disadvantaged by the Fund.  The redevelopment of vacant and 
derelict properties in the commercial area of towns and villages makes a signifi cant 
contribution to the economic and social regeneration, of these areas, which in turn 
encourages people from all sides of the community to work and socialise together.

In 2004, fi nancial assistance of £6.7m has been offered to 100 applicants with the 
expected creation of 952 jobs.  It is estimated that the Fund’s support for UDP in 
Northern Ireland has been successful in generating private sector investment of almost 
£207m while helping to create and maintain up to 11,500 jobs.

In addition, the Fund has worked closely with the Townscape Heritage Initiative 
element of the Heritage Lottery Fund to ensure that key buildings that meet the 
criteria of both organisations can be redeveloped for economic use whilst at the same 
time maintaining the heritage and architecture of old properties.

Community Property Development Scheme (CPDS)
The Community Property Development Scheme was introduced in 1994.  Its aim is 

Before and after photos of  
41-43 Castle Street, Comber, 
County Down
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to allow towns and villages, whilst not designated as disadvantaged by the Fund but 
that contain a high level of dereliction, to implement a community driven economic 
project along the lines of CRISP that operates in the disadvantaged areas.  Funding of 
up to 70% or £300,000, whichever is the greater, is available.  As well as contributing 
to the economic regeneration of an area and the removal of dereliction, projects seek 
to improve community morale and help sustain the community group promoting the 
project in the long term through the provision of an income stream.

Sixteen projects have been completed and a further four projects have been approved 
this year.  Initial work, including the completion of economic appraisals and business 
plans, is under way in a further 4 towns or villages.  

During this year approval was given to projects in Ahoghill, Greyabbey, Kircubbin 
and Ballywalter and to preliminary work in Antrim, Drumaness, Crossgar and 
Cloughmills.

Second Community Projects Programme
The Second Community Project Programme was introduced in 2000 to allow 
community based organisations that had successfully delivered a project under CRISP, 
CERS or CPDS to implement a second project.  The objective is to allow applicant 
groups to contribute further to the regeneration of their area, facilitate further 
community capacity building and, by the generation of additional rental income, 

sustain the work of the group in the 
long term.  Funding of 50% up to a 
maximum of £250,000 is available.

During the year, projects were 
approved in Dungannon West, 
Ballynahinch, Derrygonnelly and 
Castlewellan.  Pre-application work 
has been approved in a further 5 
towns and villages and it is hoped 
that these will come forward for full 
approval next year.

Flagships Programme
This initiative provides support 
to major projects chosen for their 
potential to contribute signifi cantly 

Below: Irish President Mary 
McAleese talking with children 
from the local primary schools 
at the official opening of  the 
Poyntzpass Community Prop-
erty Development Scheme.
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to social and economic regeneration in their regions and also because of their symbolic 
signifi cance for Ireland, North and South.

Strabane/Lifford Waterways Project
The twin towns of Strabane and Lifford and their respective hinterlands share similar 
degrees of disadvantage.  The area is highly reliant on traditional and declining 
industries such as textiles and agriculture.  Tourism as yet is a very small contributor 
to the local economy and currently Strabane only achieves 1.3% of Northern Ireland’s 
overall tourism with Lifford and east Donegal refl ecting a similar experience.

In 2004 the Board of the Fund agreed to support a proposal from the Strabane/
Lifford Development Commission to carry out an economic development project 
to exploit the potential for tourism activities at the confl uence of the three rivers, 
Mourne, Finn and the Foyle in the cross-border area of Strabane/Lifford.  The 
project will promote economic and social advance by developing and enhancing the 
tourist product by making more accessible areas of natural beauty that were previously 
closed or fortifi ed during the confl ict of the last 30 years.  The project will focus on 
providing access for people with special needs at the locations in question and provide 
opportunities for existing providers, including the Lifford Courthouse, to add value to 
the visitor experience.

The Waterways Project is aimed at enhancing the local infrastructure and tourism 
product thereby improving the competitiveness of the cross-border region and 
assisting with the diversifi cation of the local economy which is characterised by the 
dependency on industries subject to decline or competitive global pressures.  This 
will be achieved by the development and upgrading of facilities in infrastructure that 
enable the co-ordinated approach to the development of cross-border leisure activities 
such as walking and cycling trails, canoeing, environmental tours, educational visits, 
bird watching, eco-tourism and angling.  The application consists of the following 
elements:-

• ecological study into the disused canal;
• creation of canal locks within the nature and heritage area;
• development of the river bank in Lifford, County Donegal with river access at 

Clady, County Londonderry;
• development of a website and CD rom for education, marketing and 

consultation purposes; and
• development of interpretive signage and development proposals for a phase II 

recreation park.
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Investment Companies
The Fund’s 2 investment companies, Enterprise Equity (NI) Limited based in Belfast 
and Enterprise Equity (Irl) Limited in Dundalk and Galway, provide venture capital 
to new and expanding businesses in Northern Ireland and the Border, Midlands and 
Western Counties in Ireland under the Enterprise Equity Venture Capital Group name.  
The Board of the Fund also acts as the Board of the two companies, which employ 
their own staff.

During the year £1.5 million (€2.2 million) was invested in 6 companies.  This brings 
Group investment since inception to £35 million (€51 million) in 69 companies.  

The Group continues to be successful in investing in well-managed innovative 
companies with the potential for capital growth, reinvesting the proceeds from 

Above: Gillian Russell 
Audit Partner from Deloitte 
& Touche congratulates Bob 
McGowan-Smith on the sale of  
Ben Sherman.
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previous investments and also leveraging third party fi nance into investee companies.  
Executives from both investment companies continue to play an active role with 
portfolio companies to assist and support their successful development.

Examples of investments made this year include Neutekbio Limited and FMC Tech 
Limited.  Enterprise Equity led a €1.8 million funding round in Neutekbio, a Galway 
based company which has developed Interferon-related diagnostic products.  The 
Group also led a €1.4 million fi nancing of FMC Tech which provides monitoring 
systems for overhead power networks.

During the year the Group realised a number of investments.  Most notable among 
these realisations was the sale of Ben Sherman Limited to Oxford Industries Inc for 
£80m which resulted in a payment of £12m to the Group.  

Enterprise Equity remains a key provider of venture capital within the 2 regions 
and will continue to actively seek out new investment opportunities and work with 
management teams to grow existing portfolio companies.
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The Board members present their report and the audited
fi nancial statements for the year ended 30 September 2004.

Authority
The Agreement between the Governments of Ireland and of the United Kingdom to establish the 
International Fund for Ireland was signed on 18 September 1986.  Notifi cations of acceptance were 
exchanged on 1 December 1986 and orders giving effect to the Agreement in the domestic law of 
the United Kingdom and of Ireland became operational on 12 December 1986.

Article 3
Article 3 of the Agreement to establish the Fund provides that approximately three-quarters of the 
resources of the Fund should be spent in Northern Ireland.

Principal Activities and Review of Business
The Fund continues to structure its business operations to address the principal objectives set out in 
its founding Agreement:-

“to promote economic and social advance and to encourage contact, dialogue and reconciliation 
between nationalists and unionists throughout Ireland”.

A review of the Fund’s business activities for this report year is included in the Chairman’s Report.

Board members’ responsibilities
The Board members are required to prepare fi nancial statements for each fi nancial year that give 
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Fund and of the excess or shortfall of income 
over expenditure of the Fund for that period. In preparing those fi nancial statements, the Board 
members are required to:-

• select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

• make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

• state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any    
 material departures disclosed and explained in the fi nancial statements; and

• prepare the fi nancial statements on the going concern basis, unless it is     
 inappropriate to presume that the Fund will continue in business.

The Board members are responsible for keeping accounting records that disclose with reasonable 
accuracy at any time the fi nancial position of the Fund and enable them to ensure that the fi nancial 
statements comply with the best practice.  They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of 
the Fund and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other 
irregularities.

Board Members’ Report
for the year ended 30 September 2004
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Statement on the System of Internal Control
Scope of Responsibility
As Chairman, I have responsibility for maintaining a sound system of internal control that supports 
the achievement of the Fund’s policies, aims and objectives, whilst safeguarding the donors’ funds 
and those assets for which I am personally responsible.

The Fund has carried out appropriate procedures to ensure that we have identifi ed the Fund’s 
objectives and risks and determined a control strategy for each of the signifi cant risks. As a result, 
risk ownership has been allocated to the appropriate staff and the Fund has set out its attitude to 
risk to the achievement of the Fund’s objectives. The Fund’s Board has ensured that procedures are 
in place for verifying that aspects of risk management and internal control are regularly reviewed 
and reported on.  Risk management has been incorporated into the corporate planning and 
decision making processes of the Fund.

The Board receives periodic reports concerning internal control. An organisation-wide risk register 
has been developed and the appropriate steps have been taken to manage risks in signifi cant areas of 
responsibility and monitor progress on key projects.  In addition to these actions the Fund:-

• regularly reviews and updates the record of risks facing the Organisation;
• maintains a system of key performance and risk indicators; and
• arranges for reports from the Joint Chairs of the Fund’s Agents on internal control   
 activities including reference to internal audit reports.

The Purpose of the System of Internal Control
The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to 
eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide 
reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on 
an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the Fund’s 
policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact 
should they be realised, and to manage them effi ciently, effectively and economically. The system 
of internal control has been in place since 1 October 2003 and up to the date of approval of the 
annual report and accounts.

Review of Effectiveness
As Chairman, I have responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal control. 
My review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control is informed by the work of the 
internal auditors of the various agents who administer certain programmes on behalf of the Fund 
and the executive managers who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the 
internal control framework, and comments made by the external auditors in their management 
letter and other reports. My review is also informed by external reviews by auditors working on 
behalf of the donor countries by a regular independent assessment of the effectiveness of the Fund. 
No signifi cant matters have arisen during the year although a range of minor weaknesses have 
been raised with the Audit Committee and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous 
improvement of the system is in place.

By order of the Board

W T McCarter
Chairman
3 December 2004
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We have audited the fi nancial statements, which comprise the income and expenditure account, the 
balance sheet, the cash fl ow statement, the statement of total recognised gains and losses and the 
related notes.

Respective responsibilities of the Board and the auditors
The Board members’ responsibilities for preparing the annual report and the fi nancial statements 
in accordance with applicable accounting standards are set out in the statement of Board Members’ 
responsibilities.

Our responsibility is to audit the fi nancial statements in accordance with Auditing Standards issued 
by the Auditing Practices Board. This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only 
for the International Fund for Ireland as a body and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving this 
opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this 
report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent 
in writing.  

We report to you our opinion as to whether the fi nancial statements give a true and fair view and 
are properly prepared in accordance with best practice, and whether in all material respects the 
expenditure and income have been applied to the purposes intended and the fi nancial transactions 
conform to the authorities which govern them.  We also report to you if, in our opinion, the Board 
Members’ report is not consistent with the fi nancial statements, if the Fund has not kept proper 
accounting records or if we have not received all the information and explanations we require for 
our audit.

We read the other information contained in the annual report and consider the implications for 
our report if we become aware of any apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies with the 
fi nancial statements. The other information comprises only the Board Members’ report.

We review whether the statement on page 54 refl ects the compliance of the Fund with best practice. 
We report if it does not meet the requirements or if the statement is misleading or inconsistent with 
other information we are aware of from our audit of the fi nancial statements.

Basis of opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards issued by the Auditing Practices 
Board. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and 
disclosures and regularity of fi nancial transactions included in the fi nancial statements. It also 
includes an assessment of the signifi cant estimates and judgements made by the Board in the 
preparation of the fi nancial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to 
the Fund’s circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we 
considered necessary in order to provide us with suffi cient evidence to give reasonable assurance 
that the fi nancial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or 
other irregularity or error, and that, in all material respects, the expenditure and income have been 
applied to the purposes intended and the fi nancial transactions conform to the authorities which 
govern them. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of 
information in the fi nancial statements.

Independent auditors’ report 
to the Board of  the International Fund for Ireland
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Opinion
In our opinion:
• the fi nancial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Fund   
at 30 September 2004 and of its excess of expenditure over income and cash fl ows for the year then 
ended; and

• in all material respects the expenditure and income have been applied to the    
purposes intended and the fi nancial transactions conform to the authorities which   
govern them.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
Dublin 
Date 3 December 2004 

PricewaterhouseCoopers  LLP
Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
Belfast
Date 3 December 2004
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         Total transactions expressed in £ and Euro €

  2004 2003 2004 2003

 Notes £’000 £’000 €’000 €’000

Income 2 19,784 27,690 28,825 39,505

     

Expenditure     

Approved projects 1,6 31,205      30,671 45,466 43,758

Other expenses 3 231 184 337 262

  31,436 30,855 45,803 44,020

Excess of expenditure over income  (11,652)       (3,165)   (16,978)        (4,515)

     

Reconciliation of movement in the Fund balance     

At 30 September 2003  22,640 26,044 32,301 41,445

Exchange differences on retranslation at 

1 October 2003 1 96           (239) 824        (4,629)

  22,736 25,805 33,125 36,816

Excess of expenditure over income for the year       (11,652)      (3,165)   (16,978)      (4,515)

At 30 September 2004  11,084 22,640 16,147 32,301

 

Income and expenditure account
for the year ended 30 September 2004 

The amounts above relate to the continuing operations of the Fund. There is no difference 
between the excess of expenditure over income and its historical cost equivalent.

W T McCarter 
Chairman

H Kirkpatrick
Member of the Board
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       Total transactions expressed in £ and Euro €

  2004 2003 2004 2003

 Notes £’000 £’000 €’000 €’000

Assets  

Cash at bank and on deposit  73,116 68,326 106,529 97.479

Donor contributions due 4 30,902 40,596 45,023 57,918

Other amounts receivable 5 245 1,271 356 1,813

  104,263 110,193 151,908 157,210

  

Liabilities     

Approved project expenditure outstanding 6,7 92,184 86,544 134,311 123,469

Creditors and accrued expenses 8 995 1,009 1,450 1,440

  93,179 87,553 135,761 124,909

Fund balance at 30 September 2004 9 11,084 22,640 16,147 32,301

Balance Sheet
at 30 September 2004

W T McCarter 
Chairman

H Kirkpatrick
Member of the Board
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    Total transactions expressed in £ and Euro €

  2004 2003 2004 2003

 Notes £’000 £’000 €’000 €’000

Net cash infl ow/(outfl ow) from   
operating activities     

Cash received from donor governments  26,487 12,010 38,591 17,134

Cash disbursements to projects,    
excluding accruals        (25,074)   (22,229)   (36,533)    (31,715)

Loan repayments  - 379 - 541

Other cash payments             (242)       (188)        (353)         (269)

Interest received  3,803 2,027 5,542 2,892

Net Cash infl ow/(outfl ow) and   

increase/ (decrease) in cash 11,12 4,974       (8,001) 7,247      (11,417)
 

Cash flow statement
for the year ended 30 September 2004

Statement of  total recognised gains & losses
for the year ended 30 September 2004

     Total transactions expressed in £ and Euro €

  2004 2003 2004 2003

 Notes £’000 £’000 €’000 €’000

Excess of expenditure over income         (11,652)    (3,165)   (16,978) 4,515 

Currency translation difference charged  
to the Fund balance 1 96         (239) 824        (4,629)

Total recognised (losses)/gains  

relating to the year         (11,556)    (3,404)   (16,154)      (9,144)
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1 Accounting Policies

These fi nancial statements are prepared on the going concern basis under the historical cost 
convention and in accordance with applicable accounting standards.  The principal accounting 
policies are set out below. 

Currencies
The Fund’s transactions are effected in the currencies of each part of Ireland.  The Financial 
Statements are presented in both currencies, each representing an aggregation of all of the 
transactions for the year in each part of Ireland translated at the respective exchange rates at the 
year end.  Differences arising on the restatement, to the year end exchange rate, of assets and 
liabilities at the start of the fi nancial year are adjusted against the Fund balance and reported in the 
Statement of total recognised gains and losses.  

All other foreign exchange differences are taken to the respective Income and Expenditure 
accounts.

Approved projects
The income and expenditure account incorporates the cost of approved projects (after deduction 
of projects which did not proceed) and related administration expenditure, which while remaining 
outstanding, are included in the balance sheet under liabilities.  Grants paid, together with expenses 
incurred directly on the administration of grant programmes, are charged against the outstanding 
approved project expenditure.

Loans
Funds disbursed to projects by way of loans are refl ected in the total of the programme 
disbursements and are not included in the balance sheet.  Any loan repayments received during the 
year are credited to the income and expenditure account.

Interest Income
The income and expenditure account includes interest credited to the bank deposit accounts during 
the year together with interest accrued, but not actually credited, at the year end.

Investment Companies
Funds allocated and paid to the Fund’s investment companies by way of investment in their share 
capital are treated as part of its programme expenditure, and no amount is shown in the balance 
sheet in respect of the investment in them.  Summary details of the trading results and fi nancial 
position of each investment company are included at note 13.

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 30 September 2004
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2 Income 

    2004 2003 2004 2003

    £’000 £’000 €’000 €’000

From donors   

United States of America (US$ 18.5m: 2003 US$25m) 6,726 13,726 9,800 19,582

European Union (€15m: 2003 €15m)   10,131 10,865 14,761 15,502 

Canada (Can$333,333)   145 - 211 -

    17,002 24,591 24,772 35,084

Interest receivable   2,782 2,720 4,053 3,880

Loans repaid   - 379 - 541

    19,784 27,690 28,825 39,505

Exchange translation losses, of £3.7/€5.4 million (2003 losses: £1.2/€1.7 million), included 
in income from donors arise from the translation of US$ and Euro denominated donor 
contributions.  The extent to which any gain or loss is realised will depend on exchange rate 
movements up to the date of receipt of contributions due.

3 Other expenses

    2004 2003 2004 2003

    £’000 £’000 €’000 €’000

Board members’ fee   85 80 124 114

Board meetings   24 58 35 82

Consultancy and other fees  58 88 85 126

Auditor’s remuneration - Audit  28 28 41 41

  - Other  68 42 98 60

Travelling and subsistence   68 51 99 73

Postage, stationary, telephone and offi ce  15 33 22 48

Promotional and advertising expenses  126 109 184 154

Miscellaneous   3 11 5 15

    475 500 693 713

Less: Contributions receivable from the 
Governments of Ireland and the United Kingdom,
in respect of certain of the above expenses           (244)         (316)         (356)        (451)

    231 184 337 262

Certain other expenses of the Fund, including accommodation and staff expenses, are met 

directly by the two governments. 
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 2004 2003 2004 2003

 £’000 £’000 €’000 €’000

United States of America   

-2004 (US$18.5 million) 10,239 - 14,919 -

-2003 (US$25 million) - 15,041 - 21,459 

-2002 (US$25 million) - 15,041 - 21,459

European Union   

-2004 (€15 million) 10,295 - 14,999 -

-2003 (€15 million) 10,295 10,514 14,999 15,000

Canada     

-2004 (CAN$0.33 million) 73 - 106 -

 30,902 40,596 45,023 57,918

4 Donor contributions

 

 2004 2003 2004 2003

 £’000 £’000 €’000 €’000

Bank interest receivable 210 1,223 305 1,745

Government contributions 35 48 51 68 

 245 1,271 356 1,813

5 Other amounts receivable

 

   

   

                                                                                                         Year to 30 September 2004

 £’000 €’000

Approved project expenditure outstanding at 30 September 2003 
(retranslated to current exchange rates) 86,063 125,393

Project approvals in the year 31,205 45,466

Project disbursements in the year                                                                  (25,084)      (36,548) 

Approved project expenditure outstanding at 30 September 2004 92,184 134,311

6 Approved project expenditure

The totals of the Fund’s project disbursements in the year ended 30 September 2004 and the 
movements in approved projects outstanding are as follows:

An analysis of these totals by expenditure programme is included at page 66.

The disbursements made during the year include administration costs of £2.8/€4 millions 
(2003: £2.6/€3.6 millions) payable to the agencies operating various programmes.
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7 Cumulative Approved Projects and Disbursements to date
 
Cumulatively, the totals of the Fund’s approved projects and project disbursements to date are
summarised:      

                                                                                     Cumulative totals to 30 September 2004

   £’000 €’000

Total approved projects to date   527,165 768,078

Total disbursements to projects and administration costs to date       (434,981)     (633,767)

Approved project expenditure outstanding at 30 September 2004  92,184 134,311

To date the Fund has approved total payments in respect of specifi c projects and administration 
costs to a total of £527/€768 millions after deduction of approved projects which did not 
proceed.

The approved project expenditure outstanding at 30 September 2004 reported in the balance 
sheet represents the unspent balance of the projects approved for which a claim for payment of 
grant has yet to be received.

8 Creditors and accrued expenses

 2004 2003 2004 2003

 £’000 £’000 €’000 €’000

Creditors and accrued expenses 995 1,009 1,450 1,440 

9 Fund balance and Programme Commitments

The Board’s policy is to optimise the fi nancial impact of donor contributions taking account of 
the timescales involved in the submission and approval of project applications.

The Board annually commits to each expenditure programme a budget against which project 
approvals are made. At 30 September 2004 the cumulative budgets for these expenditure 
programmes totalled £557/€812 millions of which £122/€178 millions remained to be 
disbursed to projects:      

   £’000 €’000

Committed budget programme expenditure outstanding at 30 Sept 2004  121,892 177,596

Approved project expenditure outstanding yet to be claimed      
against specifi c projects       (92,184)   (134,311)

Committed budget programme expenditure remaining 
to be approved against individual projects   29,708 43,285

The Fund balance of £11/€16 millions at 30 September 2004 shown in the balance sheet on 
page 58 represents the funds out of which the balance of the Board’s committed programme 
expenditure of £30/€43 millions will be met, the difference to be met from approved future 
contributions by the donors.



64    International Fund for Ireland

10 Loans

The aggregate of loans made by the Fund and outstanding at 30 September 2004 amounted to 
£166,095/€242,000 (2003: £169,622/€242,000).

11 Reconciliation of excess of income over expenditure to net cashfl ow  
     from operating activities

 2004 2003 2004 2003

 £’000 £’000 €’000 €’000

Excess of expenditure over income                               (11,652)      (3,165)   (16,978)       (4,515)

Decrease/(increase) in donor contributions due 9,694      (13,379) 12,895      (14,607)

Increase in approved project expenditure outstanding 5,640 10,895 10,842 3,089

Decrease/(increase) in other amounts receivable 1,026           (676) 1,457           (866)

(Decrease)/increase in creditors and accrued expenses            (14)          (281) 10           (613)

 4,694        (6,606) 8,226      (17,512)

Retranslation to current year exchange rates 280        (1,395)         (979) 6,095

Net cash infl ow/(outfl ow) 4,974        (8,001) 7,247      (11,417)

12 Analysis of changes in cash
 2004 2003 2004 2003

 £’000 £’000 €’000 €’000

Balance at 1 October 2003 68,326 75,171 97,479 119,620

Retranslation to current year exchange rates                      (184) 1,156 1,803      (10,724)

Balance at 1 October 2003, retranslated to current  
year exchange rates 68,142 76,327 99,282 108,896

Net cash infl ow/(outfl ow) 4,974        (8,001) 7,247      (11,417)

Balance at 30 September 2004 73,116 68,326 106,529 97,479
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13 Investment companies

A summary of the separate operating results and statement of total recognised gains and losses 
of each investment company for the year to 30 September 2004 are as follows:

   Enterprise Equity Enterprise Equity
       (NI) Limited (Ireland) Limited
 2004 2003 2004 2003
 £’000 £’000 €’000 €’000

Profi t/(loss) on ordinary activities after taxation 2,220            (462) 9       (1,400)

Unrealised gain/(loss) on revaluation of investments 116              (38)          (144)           (80)

Total gain/(loss) recognised since last

annual report 2,336            (500)          (135)      (1,480)

The fi nancial position of the companies at 30 September 2004 is summarised:

 2004 2003 2004 2003
 £’000 £’000 €’000 €’000

Tangible fi xed assets 8 25 29 33

Trade investments 2,980 13,138 10,722 11,867

 2,988 13,163 10,751 11,900

Net current assets     

Bank deposits and investments 13,075 706 2,846 1,822

Debtors falling due after one year 201 - - -

Sundry debtors less creditors                                       (1,224)             (15) 86 96

 12,052 691 2,932 1,918

Provisions for liabilities and charges                                (2)        (1,152) - -

Net Assets 15,038 12,702 13,683 13,818

Capital and Reserves   

Shareholder’s loans - - 3,500 3,500

Share capital 10,564 10,564 9,250 9,250

Revenue reserves 4,247 2,294 933 1,068

Investment revaluation reserve 227             (156) - -

Equity shareholders’ funds 15,038 12,702 13,683 13,818

At 30 September 2004 the Board of Enterprise Equity (NI) Limited had agreed in principle to 
further specifi c investments of £Nil (2003: £90,000).

14 Approval of fi nancial statements

These fi nancial statements were approved by the Board of the International Fund for Ireland on 
3 December 2004.
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  Approved   Approved
  projects Project  projects
  outstanding at approvals and Project and outstanding at
  30 September administration administration 30 September
  2003 Costs disbursements 2004
Expressed in £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Regeneration of Deprived Areas 29,127 6,066 4,841 30,352
Community Capacity Building 
- Communities Initiative 6,165 3,152 1,856 7,461
- Wider Horizons 4,842 4,701 6,203 3,340
- Key/Interact 2,226 464 721 1,969
- Communities in Transition 1,444 36 307 1,173
- Learning & Educating Together - 302 - 302
Economic Development
- Business Enterprise & Technology 17,880 5,389 7,219 16,050
- Tourism 3,665 2,599 769 5,495
- Urban Development 11,025 8,083 2,972 16,136
- Flagship 7,631 413 196 7,848
- Investment Companies 2,058 - - 2,058
  86,063 31,205 25,084 92,184

Expressed in €’000 €’000 €’000 €’000 €’000

Regeneration of Deprived Areas 42,438 8,838 7,053 44,223
Community Capacity Building 
- Communities Initiative 8,982 4,593 2,704 10,871
- Wider Horizons 7,055 6,849 9,038 4,866
- Key/Interact 3,243 677 1,050 2,870
- Communicates in Transition 2,103 52 449 1,706
- Learning & Educating Together - 440 - 440
Economic Development
- Business Enterprise & Technology 26,051 7,852 10,518 23,385
- Tourism 5,340 3,787 1,120 8,007
- Urban Development 16,064 11,777 4,330 23,511
- Flagship 11,118 601 286 11,433
- Investment Companies 2,999 - - 2,999
  125,393 45,466 36,548 134,311

The above totals of approved project expenditure outstanding at 30 September 2003 differ from 
the balances shown in the balance sheet at that date as a result of their retranslation at current 
year end exchange rates.

Analysis of  programme disbursements for the year and of  
approved projects
outstanding at 30 September 2004
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Analysis of  the cumulative totals of  approved projects and 
disbursements  
to 30 September 2004

                                                                                                        Totals to 30 September 2004

 Cumulative Cumulative
 approved disbursements
 projects and to projects and
 administration administration
 costs costs
Expressed in £’000 £’000 £’000

Regeneration of Deprived Areas 136,221 105,869
Community Capacity Building 
- Communities Initiative 30,827 23,366
- Wider Horizons 65,623 62,283
- Key/Interact 4,922 2,953
- Communities in Transition 1,930 757
- Learning & Educating Together 302 -
Economic Development
- Business Enterprise & Technology 114,373 98,323
- Tourism 57,585 52,090
- Urban Development 72,297 56,161
- Flagship 20,140 12,292
- Investment Companies 22,945 20,887
 527,165 434,981
Less: total disbursements to date                                                     (434,981)
Approved project expenditure outstanding at 30 Sept 2004 92,184

Expressed in €’000 €’000 €’000

Regeneration of Deprived Areas 198,473 154,250
Community Capacity Building 
- Communities Initiatives 44,915 34,044
- Wider Horizons 95,613 90,747
- Key/Interact 7,171 4,301
- Communities in Transition 2,812 1,106
- Learning & Educating Together 440 -
Economic Development
- Business Enterprise & Technology 166,641 143,256
- Tourism 83,901 75,894
- Urban Development 105,337 81,826
- Flagship 29,344 17,911
- Investment Companies 33,431 30,432
 768,078 633,767
Less: total disbursements to date                                                     (633,767)
Approved project expenditure outstanding at 30 Sept 2004 134,311
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Community Bridges Programme

Assistance to projects designed to improve relations between the communities in Northern 
Ireland and between the communities North and South.
   
NAME ADDRESS NORTH UK£
Ards Borough Council Area
Link Family & South Street 5,000
Community Centre Newtownards

Armagh City Council Area
Ballymore Open Market Street 250,000
Centre Tandragee

Keady & District Hillcrest House 105,000
Youth Derrynoose Road
 Crossnamoyle
Belfast City Council Area
Concerned Residents Glenbryn Drive 30,690
of Upper Ardoyne Belfast

Extern Graham House, Belfast 5,000
 
Irish School of Antrim Road, Belfast 150,000
Ecumenics 

Short Strand Beechfi eld Street 76,556
Community Forum Belfast

Suffolk/Lenadoon Stewartstown Road 3,300
Interface Group Belfast

Coleraine Borough Council Area
School of University of Ulster 123,100
Education Coleraine

Craigavon Borough Council Area
Drumcree Community Mayfair Business  86,250
Trust Centre Garvaghy Road
 Portadown

Portadown Local Action  Ardress Park 115,000
for Community Engagement Portadown
(PLACE)

Derry City Council Area
St Columbs Park Limavady Road 114,000
House Londonderry

Appendix 1 - Community Capacity Building
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NAME ADDRESS NORTH UK£
Down District Council Area
Down Community St Patrick’s Ave 2,500
Arts Downpatrick

Glebe House Kilclief 75,000
 Strangford

NAME ADDRESS SOUTH €
County Louth
New Border Thoisel Street 328,638
Generation Carlingford

All Areas
Glencree Centre Glencree 468,146
for Reconciliation Wicklow

Westgate Westgate West 380,000
Foundation Village, Ballincollig

Special Community Projects

NAME ADDRESS NORTH UK£
Armagh City Council Area

Mid Armagh Main Street 91,780
Community Network Markethill

Wider Horizons

A cross-border training, work experience and reconciliation mainly focused on young people in 
the 18-28 age group in disadvantaged areas.
  
NAME PROJECT DESCRIPTION NORTH/SOUTH UK£
Ireland/North America
Springboard Training & Work Experience  82,588
Opportunities3 in IT to Toronto, Canada

ADL Horizons Ltd5 Training & Work 83,900
 Experience in Various
 Careers to Ontario, Canada

Springboard Training & Work Experience 82,857
Opportunities3 in IT & Business Services to
 Kitchener, Canada

Appendix 1 - Community Capacity Building
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NAME PROJECT DESCRIPTION NORTH/SOUTH UK£
Springboard Training & Work Experience 93,635
Opportunities3 in Media Skills to Vancouver,
 Canada

Border Horizons4 Training & Work Experience 96,940
 in Multi Media to Brevard,
 Florida, USA

Border Horizons4 Training & Work Experience 73,040
 in Hospitality to Banff,
 Canada

Fermanagh, Sligo, Training & Work Experience 98,300
Leitrim6 in Hospitality to Orlando, USA

MAPP Ltd1 Training & Work Experience 85,995
 in Multi Media to Toronto,
 Canada

Springboard Training & Work Experience 92,785
Opportunities3 in Voluntary & Community Work
 to Boston, USA

Springboard Training & Work 82,106
Opportunities3 Experience in Various
 Options to Montreal, Canada

Tyrone Donegal Training & Work Experience 88,450
Partnership2 in Various Options to
 Boston, USA

Border Horizons4 Training & Work Experience 88,040
 in Retail to Ontario, Canada

Border Horizons4 Training & Work Experience 83,940
 in Business Administration to
 Chicago, USA

Fermanagh, Sligo, Training & Work Experience 77,300
Leitrim6 in Various Options to Virginia,
 USA

Tyrone Donegal Training & Work Experience  86,850
Partnership2 in Offi ce Administration to
 Kitchener, Canada

Mapp Ltd1 Training & Work Experience 85,995
 in Various Careers to
 Thunderbay, Canada

Appendix 1 - Community Capacity Building
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Appendix 1 - Community Capacity Building

NAME PROJECT DESCRIPTION NORTH/SOUTH UK£
ADL Horizons Ltd5 Training & Work Experience 92,900
 in IT to Ontario, Canada

MAPP Ltd1 Training & Work Experience 86,191
 in IT to Kitchener, Canada

MAPP Ltd1 Training & Work Experience 85,995
 in Offi ce Administration to
 Kitchener, Canada

Springboard Training & Work Experience 79,771
Opportunities3 in Various Options to
 Kitchener, Canada

Tyrone Donegal Training & Work Experience 84,700
Partnership2 in Multi Media to Souix Falls, 
 USA

Border Horizons4 Training & Work Experience 88,440
 in Various Options to Boston, USA

MAPP Ltd1 Training & Work Experience 85,799
 in Various Careers to Thunder Bay,
 Canada

ADL Horizons Ltd5 Training & Work Experience 92,400
 in Caring to Boston 

Tyrone Donegal Training & Work Experience 85,610
Partnership2 Various Options to Cambridge,
 Canada

Border Horizons4 Training & Work Experience in 86,790
 Property Maintenance to
 Montreal Canada

Border Horizons4 Training & Work Experience in  73,040
 Hospitality to Banff, Canada

Springboard Training & Work Experience in  93,828
Opportunities3 Leisure Services to Vancouver, 
 Canada

Springboard Training & Work Experience in  96,676
Opportunities3 Community Care & Childcare to 
 Toronto, Canada
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Appendix 1 - Community Capacity Building

NAME PROJECT DESCRIPTION NORTH/SOUTH UK£
Fermanagh, Sligo, Training & Work Experience in 86,650
Leitrim6 IT to Montreal, Canada

Fermanagh, Sligo, Training & Work Experience in  92,380
Leitrim6 Various Careers to Toronto
 Canada

MAPP Ltd1 Training & Work Experience in  85,995
 Hospitality to Kitchener,
 Canada

Tyrone Donegal Training & Work Experience Various  86,330
Partnership2 Careers to Cambridge, Canada

ADL Horizons Ltd5 Contact Grant to Develop Career 2,993
  Choices to Pittsburgh & 
 New York, USA

Springboard Contact Grant to Develop Career 3,000
Opportunities3 Choices to San  Francisco, USA

Fermanagh, Sligo, Contact Grant to Develop Career 3,000
Leitrim6 Choices to Pittsburgh and 
 Mississippi, USA

Border Horizons4 Contact Grant to Develop Career 3,000
 Choices to Pittsburgh,
 USA and Ontario, Canada

Tyrone Donegal Contact Grant to Develop Career 3,000
Partnership2 Choices to Florida, USA

Tyrone Donegal Contact Grant to Develop Career 3,000
Partnership2 Choices to New Jersey, USA

MAPP Ltd1 Contact Grant to Develop Career 3,000
 Choices to Boston & Pittsburgh, USA

MAPP Ltd1 Contact Grant to Develop Career 3,000
 Choices to Montreal Canada

ADL Horizons Ltd5 Training & Work Experience in   87,400
 Hospitality to Madrid, Spain

Border Horizons4 Training & Work Experience in  77,940
 Web Design to Bornholm, Denmark

Tyrone Donegal Training & WorkExperience in 84,350
Partnership2 Hospitality to Barcelona, Spain
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Appendix 1 - Community Capacity Building

NAME PROJECT DESCRIPTION NORTH/SOUTH UK£
Springboard Training & Work Experience in 64,421
Opportunities3 various Careers to London,
 England

Border Horizons4 Training & Work Experience in IT 87,440
 to Copenhagen, Denmark

Springboard Training & Work Experience in 61,600
Opportunities3 various Careers to Ypres,
 Belgium

Border Horizons4 Training & Work Experience in  99,950
 Reconcilation & Leadership to Aland 
 Island, Finland & Brussels, Belgium

Tyrone Donegal Training & Work Experience in 85,350
Partnership2  Hospitality to Barcelona, Spain

ADL Horizons Ltd5 Contact Grant to Develop Career  2,993
 Choices to Holland

MAPP Ltd1 Contact Grant to Develop Career  3,000
 Choices to Prague, Czech Republic

Border Horizons4 Contact Grant to Develop Leadership 3,000
 Programme to Cyprus & Belgium

Ireland/Rest of World
Springboard Training & Work Experience in 71,101
Opportunities3 Community Reconciliation to Cape,
 Town, South Africa

Springboard Contact Grant to Develop Career 3,000
Opportunities3 Choices to Melbourne, Australia

Open Access
The Cedar Training & Work Experience in  54,723
Foundation Various Careers to Ferraro, Italy

Maydown Ebrington Training & Work Experience in  78,430
 Horticulture & Tourism to 
 Messines, Belgium

Newcastle YMCA Training & Work Experience in  85,900
 Recreation Services & Customer 
 Care to Colorado, USA
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Appendix 1 - Community Capacity Building

Knowledge Through Enterprise for Youth (KEY) Programme

A cross-border programme to develop the enterprise skills of school children in disadvantaged 
areas.

NAME ADDRESS NORTH/SOUTH UK£
All Areas
Young Enterprise Northern Ireland/ Belfast/ 423,150
Junior Achievement Ireland Dublin 

Learning and Educating Together (LET) Programme

A cross-border programme to promote peace and reconciliation between students and to 
develop personal skills.

NAME ADDRESS NORTH/SOUTH UK£
All Areas
Young Enterprise Northern Ireland/ Belfast/  319,760
Junior Achievement Ireland Dublin

 1  Greater Craigavon, Upper Bann/Monaghan
 2  West, South & East Tyrone/Donegal
 3  North, South & West Belfast & Lagan Valley/Tallaght & Northside, Dublin
 4  Co. L’Derry/Donegal
 5  Armagh, Down/Lough
 6  Fermanagh/Sligo/Leitrim
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Community Regeneration & Improvement Special Programme (CRISP)

A programme comprising a variety of Fund schemes for the community-led economic and 
physical regeneration of towns and villages with a population of up to 10,000 and in areas of 
particular disadvantage in Northern Ireland.

NAME ADDRESS NORTH UK£
Ballymoney Borough Council Area
Rasharkin Community Rasharkin 28,376
Association

Border Towns and Villages Programme

A scheme for the community-led economic and physical regeneration 
of border towns and villages in the Southern border counties.

NAME ADDRESS SOUTH €
County Donegal 
Letterkenny Letterkenny 500,000
Regional Cultural Centre

Moville Community Moville 349,382
Complex

Tullyarvan Mill Buncrana 58,094
Hostel

Tus Teo Derrybeg 354,000

County Leitrim
Carrick on Shannon Carrick on Shannon 291,497
Heritage Experience

Kiltyclogher Kiltyclogher 98,005
Community Council

County Louth
Highlanes Gallery Drogheda 500,000

Appendix 2 - Regeneration of  Deprived Areas
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Appendix 2 - Regeneration of  Deprived Areas

Rural Development

An initiative to support community economic development in disadvantaged rural areas in 
Northern Ireland and the Southern border counties.

NAME ADDRESS NORTH UK£

Fermanagh District Council Area
Aughakillymaude Derrylin 94,781
Community Association

Limavady Borough Council Area
Gortnaghey Gortnaghey 88,386
Community Association

Newry & Mourne District Council Area
Altnaveigh House Newry 126,595
& Cultural Society

Omagh Borough Council Area
Drumduff & Drumnakilly  Sixmilecross 153,200
Community Association

Eskra Community Eskra 128,000
Association

Strabane District Council Area
Bready & District Ulster Bready 130,000
Scots Association

Vibrant Villages Programme

Rural Development Council Cookstown 188,250

Rural Retail Programme

Rural Development Council Cookstown 263,150
  
NAME ADDRESS SOUTH €
County Donegal
Dobhair Community Bunbeg 399,455
Enterprise Resource
Centre

Donegal Town Waterbus Donegal 477,513

Fort Dunree Buncrana 600,000
Military Museum

South West Donegal Killybegs 550,000
Communities Partnership Ltd
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Appendix 2 - Regeneration of  Deprived Areas

NAME ADDRESS SOUTH €
County Leitrim
Ballinaglera Rural Ballinaglera 183,045
Resource Centre

County Louth
Stephenstown Pond Dundalk 118,142

The Western Drumshambo 55,148
Organic Network

County Monaghan
Lisdoonan Community Monaghan 400,000
Development

County Sligo
Arrow Community Castlebaldwin 28,500
Enterprise Ltd

Special Projects

NAME/ADDRESS PROJECT DESCRIPTION NORTH UK£ 
 Belfast City Council Area
Stewartstown Road Provision of retail units offi ce  400,000
Regeneration Project Ltd accommodation and space for a  
Stewartstown Road, Belfast commercial childcare facility
 
Oasis Caring Additional assistance towards the 8,110
in Action Ltd. extension of Oasis Community
Castlereagh Street, Belfast Enterprise Centre 

Derry City Council Area
Aras Tar Abhaile Ltd  Provision of a children’s play area, 250,000
Rath Mor Business Park café and retail unit
Derry 

Creggan Community Café Provision of a 3,000 sq ft 69,000
& Catering Ltd community owned café and  
Fanad Drive catering enterprise
Derry

All Areas
Community Development of community based 500,000
Network Services high speed telecommunications
Convoy, Co Donegal network
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Business Enterprise and Technology

Workspace Accommodation
Provision of workspace units for small businesses.

NAME ADDRESS NORTH UK£
Armagh City & District Council Area
Armagh Economic A:tek Building 11,500
Development Group Edenaveys Industrial
a:tek Estate, Armagh

Ballymoney District Council Area
Acorn Business Centre Riada Avenue, Ballymoney 192,500
 

Banbridge District Council Area
Banbridge District Scarva Road Industrial  7,715
Enterprises Ltd Estate Banbridge
 

Belfast City Council Area
Queen’s Island  Albertbridge Road, Belfast 900,000
East Belfast Enterprise

Carrickfergus Borough Council Area
Carrickfergus Meadowbank Road 55,868
Enterprise Agency Ltd Carrickfergus

Craigavon Borough Council Area
CIDO – Venture  Carn Industrial 500,000
Technology  Estate, Portadown
Accelerator and 
Innovation Centre

Derry City Council Area
Creggan Enterprises Ltd Rathmor Centre, Londonderry 4,059
 
North West Queen Street 207,217
Marketing Enterprise Park Derry

Dungannon District Council
Dungannon Coalisland Road 150,000
Enterprise Centre Dungannon

Moygashel Community The Linen Green 75,000
Development Association Moygashel Dungannon

Oona Valley Eglish Road 150,000
Community Association Dungannon

Appendix 3 - Economic Development
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Appendix 3 - Economic Development

NAME ADDRESS NORTH UK£
Limavady Borough Council Area
Limavady Small Aghanloo Road 177,645
Business Agency Limavady

Lisburn City Council Area
Glenwood Springbank Industrial Estate 339,500
Enterprises Ltd Belfast
 
Magherafelt Borough Council Area
Workspace The Business Centre 176,440
(Draperstown) Ltd Draperstown

North Down Borough Council Area
Bangor Institute Bangor College 210,000
of Technology/ Bangor
North Down & Arts
Institute Incubation

North Down Enterprise House Balloo Industrial 437,000
Development Organisation Estate, Bangor
 
All Areas
Enterprise NI - Aghanloo Industrial Estate 37,463
Pre Start Programme Limavady

Plato Blackwater M:Tek Building 740
Ltd - Plato Advanced Knockaconny Monaghan 

NAME ADDRESS SOUTH €
County Cavan
Bailieborough Barrack Street 75,000
Business Park Cavan

County Leitrim
Leitrim Food Centre Laird House 450,000
of Excellence Drumshambo, Leitrim
 
County Louth
Ardee Business Park Ardee Business Park 50,000
 Hale Street, Ardee

County Monaghan
Clones Business Fermanagh Street 400,000
Technology Park Clones
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Economic and Enterprise Initiatives

NAME/ADDRESS PROJECT DESCRIPTION SOUTH € 
   
County Donegal
North West Food Initiative re developing 162,500
Initiative existing food manufacturing
Ballyraine businesses in Donegal,
Letterkenny Sligo, Leitrim & Cavan
 
County Louth
The Midas Project Creative and digital media cluster 331,000
Dublin Road to promote economic development &
Dundalk competitive advantage for SMEs in area
 
Sligo Enterprise Fund Scoping study and 20,000
Strandhill, Sligo strategy development plan
 
All Areas
Cavan Innovation Broadband network of workspace 32,000
& Technology Centre funded projects
Dublin Road, Cavan 

Border Business Development of a Pilot Cross Border 15,000
Leadership Programme Business Leadership Programme 
Dublin 

NAME/ADDRESS PROJECT DESCRIPTION NORTH/SOUTH UK£ 

All Areas
CIDO  Competitive businesses through 49,128
Carn Drive, Craigavon Sustainable Product Development
  
Enterprise NI CEB-ENI Cross Border Micro 370,000
Aghanloo Industrial Estate Enterprise Programme
Limavady 
 
Partnership Programmes

NAME/ADDRESS PROJECT DESCRIPTION NORTH/SOUTH UK£
All Areas
American Management & Assistance towards 60,000
Business Internship cost of running 
Training e-business AMBIT e-business
2004 Belfast/Dublin Programme 2004

Appendix 3 - Economic Development
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newradiane
An initiative to stimulate, promote and support company to company joint ventures in product 
and process development.

NAME ADDRESS NORTH UK£
Ards Borough Council Area
Pritchitts Ltd Belfast Road, Newtownards 64,403
 
Armagh City & District Council Area
MacNeice Brothers Ardress Estate 5,475
 Portadown, Co Armagh
 
Refl ex Mouldings Ltd Fairgreen Road 61,043
 Markethill, Co Armagh
 
Ballymena Council Area
New World Omco Industrial 7,500 

Development Estate, Woodside
 Road, Ballymena

Belfast City Council Area
Delta Print & Kennedy Way Industrial Estate 3,212
Package Ltd Blackstaff Road, Belfast
 
Alta Systems Ltd University Street, Belfast 3,639
 
Centre for The Innovation Centre 8,358
Competitiveness NI Science Park
 Queens Road, Belfast

Fin Engineering Saintfi eld Road 4,925
Ltd Carryduff, Belfast

Graham & Heslip Beechill Industrial Park 7,229
 Beechill Road, Belfast

ICS Computing Ltd Airport Road 65,000 
  Belfast

Relay Business The Gas Offi ce 11,771
Software Ltd Cromac Quay, Belfast 

Castlereagh Borough Council Area
FIN Engineering Ltd Saintfi eld Road, Carryduff 9,432
 
Coleraine Borough Council Area
Gendel Ltd Science Business Incubator Unit 5,743
 Cromore Road, Coleraine 
 

Appendix 3 - Economic Development
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 NAME ADDRESS NORTH UK£
Derry City Council Area
Aerona Software Technology & Software Innovation 5,870
Systems Ltd Centre, Hyde Business Park
 Pennyburn Industrial Estate, Derry
 
Aerona Software Technology & Software Innovation  57,810
Systems Ltd Centre Hyde Business Park
 Pennyburn Industrial Estate Derry

Fermanagh District Council Area
Lakeland Computer Consulting Beechgrove 7,110
Services Ltd Ballinamallad Fermanagh

Larne Borough Council Area
Innovation Technologies Manse Road 65,000
(Ireland) Ltd Ballycarry Co Antrim
 
Kilwaughter Chemical Starbog Road 3,449
Company Larne Co Antrim

Kilwaughter Starbog Road 5,223
Chemicals Co Ltd Larne Co Antrim
 
Lisburn City Council Area
Aisling Design Ballyknockan Road 10,470
Services Ltd Saintfi eld, Co Down

Digestors Silos Springbank Industrial Estate,  7,425
& Tanks Ltd Pembrook Loop Road, Belfast

Newtownabbey Borough Council Area
TMA Agrifood Dunsona Park 7,350
Services Ltd Newtownabbey
 Co Antrim

NAME ADDRESS SOUTH €
County Donegal
International Test Letterkenny 100,000
Technologies Co Donegal
   

Appendix 3 - Economic Development
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Tourism

Project Development

NAME/ADDRESS PROJECT DESCRIPTION NORTH UK£ 
Cookstown District Council Area
Springhill House Multifunctional education facility 3,834
Springhill Road, Moneymore with improved AV equipment

NAME/ADDRESS PROJECT DESCRIPTION SOUTH € 
County Leitrim
Wild Rose Acquisition of waterbus for the  99,076
Leisure Ltd upgrading and expansion of 
Fivemilebourne, Leitrim promoters service on Lough Gill
   
Guesthouse Development

NAME/ADDRESS PROJECT DESCRIPTION NORTH UK£
Belfast City Council Area
All Seasons B&B To create 2nd fl oor in roof space, 42,545
Lisburn Road extension to rear for 2 en-suite
Belfast & additional rooms

Camera Guesthouse Complete refurbishment of 65,000
Wellington Park property to include upgrading
Belfast of all bedrooms to en-suite
 
Coleraine Borough Council Area
Abercorn B&B To provide 3 en-suite bathrooms,  45,479
Coleraine Road reception, lobby, function room,
Portrush dining room, kitchen, utility, storage, 
 laundry etc

Dungannon District Council Area
Reah’s Restaurant Provide 3 additional en-suite 65,000
& Guesthouse bedrooms, 1 new staff
Killyman Road bedroom, guest lounge, new
Dungannon passenger lift and staff facilities 

Ardtara Country House Additional guest bedroom, extension/ 60,695
Gorteade Road upgrade public toilets, enlarge lounge,
Maghera laundry room etc

Moyle Borough Council Area
Glenmore House To provide 2 additional en-suite  47,983
Whitepark Road bedrooms, revised reception area,
Ballycastle toilets, lounge & staff changing facilities

Appendix 3 - Economic Development
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NAME/ADDRESS PROJECT DESCRIPTION NORTH UK£
North Down Borough Council Area
Beresford Lodge Make all rooms en-suite, install passenger 91,978
Queens Parade, Bangor lift. Refurbish lounge, kitchen,
 dining room, utility

Strabane Borough Council Area
The Derg Arms Complete refurbishment of property 25,000
Main Street to include the development of
Castlederg, Tyrone 4 additional bedrooms, one to be 
 fully accessible for the disabled

NAME/ADDRESS PROJECT DESCRIPTION SOUTH €
County Cavan
Fitzpatrick’s Construction of new kitchen, lounge, 37,750
Guesthouse dining room and improvements to
Loch Gowna, Cavan upgrade to a 3 star facility
 
Co Donegal
Bunbeg House Replacement of windows and guttering, 32,130
The Harbour upgrading of entrances and kitchen. 
Bunbeg, Letterkenny Install phone system
 
McGrory’s of Culdaff Upgrading of front kitchen and staff 100,000
Culdaff, Inishowen facilities. Addition of 8 bedrooms and
 installation of lift
 
Woodhill House Development of 6 additional  100,000
Ardara bedrooms, upgrading of kitchen
 facilities and toilets

County Leitrim
Asleigh Upgrading of guest-house, including 39,690
Guesthouse heating system and power supply
Dublin Road 
Carrick-on-Shannon 

County Monaghan
Ardmore House Provision of an additional six 100,000
The Square bedrooms, and conversions
Ballybay providing new kitchen & dining area
 

Ashleigh House Alternations to 4 existing bedrooms 16,500
Dublin Street, Monaghan  
 
County Sligo
Ceol Na Mara Upgrading of bedrooms, kitchen, 44,628
Main Street laundry and hallway. Building of 
Enniscrone  extension for dining area

Appendix 3 - Economic Development
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Human Resource Development

NAME/ADDRESS PROJECT DESCRIPTION  NORTH/SOUTH UK£
All Areas
Business Boost Programme To support a series of themed 60,000
TTT/Faitle Ireland “Masterclasses” in key business
Donegall Pass, Belfast improvement
 
Chef Development Programme An interactive modular programme 40,000
TTT/Faitle Ireland addressing development needs
Donegall Pass, Belfast of chefs working mainly in rural areas

Conference and Event  Provide participants with opportunity 28,000
Management Development to explore international best practice,
Amien Street, Dublin and business assistance

Marketing Coaching Cluster To support a series of themed  12,000
Donegall Pass, Belfast “Masterclasses” in key business
 improvement topics led by industry
 recognised fi gures

Tour Guide Training Distinctive professional development  45,000
Donegall Pass, Belfast programme. Focussed on enhancing
 skills of existing guides
  
 
Rural Cottages
This Programme targets the renovation of single derelict, vernacular buildings to help increase 
the potential of tourism in rural areas.

NAME/ADDRESS PROJECT DESCRIPTION NORTH UK£
Banbridge District Council Area
Magherally Cottages Renovation of existing stone building 40,000
Kilmacrew Road to provide 3 bedrooms, self-contained
Magherally, Banbridge unit capable of accommodating up to 6 people
  
Coleraine Borough Council Area
McCloeys Cottage Additional funding 5,800
Laurel Park, Coleraine
Co Londonderry

Down District Council Area
Kitty Snow Renovation of old stone house to provide 40,000
Clanvaraghan Road four bedroom units capable of
Castlewellan Co Down accommodating up to 8 people 

Dungannon District Council Area
Annaghroe Cottages To convert one vernacular cottage 40,000
Caledon Estate Co into a two storey self-catering unit
Estate Terrace, Caledon capable of accommodating 8 people
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NAME/ADDRESS PROJECT DESCRIPTION NORTH UK£
Fermanagh District Council Area
Corragole Cottage Extensive alterations 40,000
Tonywall to existing dilapidated
Kinawley 19th century dwelling to
Enniskillen provide 3 bedroomed
 self-catering cottage

Lisburn City Council Area
Oakfi eld Cottage To provide one single 38,000
Crumlin Road three bedroom self- 
Lower Ballinderry catering unit capable of
Belfast accommodating six people

Marketing - Business Tourism Programme

NAME/ADDRESS   NORTH UK£
Belfast City Council Area
Arts Marketing Association   15,000

GEM Healing Division   5,000

Rotary International   65,000

World Toilet Summit   65,000

Media Education   5,000

Managing Urban Spaces   25,000

Building Bridges   11,152

Hostel Improvement Scheme

NAME/ADDRESS PROJECT DESCRIPTION NORTH UK£
Ards Borough Council Area
Barholm Hostel Increase number of bedrooms with 92,900
The Strand en-suite, restructuring work to
Portaferry upgrade bedrooms & public areas
 
Coleraine Borough Council Area
Downhill Hostel Property extension and refurbishment of 97,991
Mussenden Road existing property to increase bed space
Downhill, Coleraine  

Metropole Hostel Refurbish existing property reduce 90,435
Eglinton Street number of rooms to provide
Portrush en-suite facilities
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NAME/ADDRESS PROJECT DESCRIPTION NORTH UK£
Rick’s Causeway Extension and 39,362
Coast Hotel refurbishment of existing
Victoria Terrace property to provide
Portstewart additional rooms. Extend 
 kitchen and dining room

Moyle Borough Council Area
Sheep Island Provision of en-suite 13,000
View Hostel bathrooms to three
Main Street bedrooms and
Ballintoy conversion of one 
Ballycastle large bathroom

NAME/ADDRESS PROJECT DESCRIPTION SOUTH € 
County Donegal
Homefi elds Youth Hostel Upgrading and refurbishment,  97,610
Bayview Avenue including provision of facilities for
Bundoran visitors with disabilities 

Urban Development

A programme to generate additional activity in urban areas by bringing vacant and derelict 
buildings and sites back into commercial use. Top priority is given to projects located in the 
commercial centres of the most disadvantaged towns, especially in CRISP designated towns.

NAME/ADDRESS PROJECT DESCRIPTION NORTH UK£
Antrim Borough Council Area

Antrim Towns Restructure vacant property to provide 63,170
Development Co Ltd commercial premises
Market Street, Antrim 
 
Heffron S Construction of commercial/ 57,288
Main Street accommodation premises on vacant site
Randalstown 
 
McCann G Demolish a newbuild 39,562
Main Street, Toomebridge shops/offi ces

The Murneen Gallery Refurbish and extend to provide 17,820
Antrim Road art gallery
Templepatrick 

Ards District Council Area
Clarke G Restructure vacant property to provide 43,359
North Street, Newtownards commercial premises
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NAME/ADDRESS PROJECT DESCRIPTION NORTH UK£
Currie I Restructure vacant property to provide 56,700
New Street, Donaghadee commercial/accommodation
 
Excel Demolition of vacant building and 100,000
High Street, Newtownards  construction of commercial premises
  
Foster I & C Restructure vacant property to provide 30,937
North Street, Newtownards commercial premises
 
Karlin Demolition of vacant building and 19,340
Properties Ltd construction of commercial premises
Castle Street, Comber 
 
McBride W & G Restructure vacant property to provide 9,615
Mill Street, Comber commercial premises

Osbourne J Demolition of derelict building and 100,000
Castle Street, Comber construction of commercial premises

Armagh City & District Council Area
Armagh  Restructure vacant property to provide 100,000 
Methodist Church commercial premises
Abbey Street, Armagh

Orchard Credit Union Restructure vacant property to provide 44,808
Victoria Street, Armagh commercial premises
 
Ballymena Borough Council Area
Barr S Refurbish to provide 50,000
Ballymoney Street retail
Ballymena

Henry  Demolition of derelict 100,000
Properties Ltd building and
Wellington Street construction of
Ballymena commercial premises

McCullough A Restructure vacant 100,000
Townhill Road property to provide 
Portglenone commercial premises

McGuigan N Construction of 100,000
Main Street commercial/
Portglenone accommodation
 premises on vacant site

Ballymoney Borough Council Area
Ballymoney Property Restructure vacant property to provide 46,728
Holdings Ltd commercial/accommodation
Main Street, Ballymoney  
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NAME/ADDRESS PROJECT DESCRIPTION NORTH UK£
Bell Architects Construction of commercial  100,000
Main Street, Ballymoney premises on vacant site
 
Banbridge District Council Area
Chambers M Demolition of vacant building and 100,000
Dromore Street, Banbridge construction of commercial premises
  
Gordon K Restructure vacant property to 7,293
Rathfriland Street provide commercial premises
Banbridge 

Rockland Demolition of vacant building and  44,053
Associations construction of commercial premises
Newry Road, Banbridge 
 
Scott G Restructure vacant property to 79,089
Bridge Street, Banbridge provide commercial premises 

Slevin S Demolition of vacant building and 47,000
Omagh Rd, Dromore construction of commercial premises

Coleraine Borough Council Area
Fleming T A Refurbish part vacant property to  16,000
Limavady Road, Garvagh provide commercial
 
Martin J Demolition of vacant building and 61,129
Stone Row, Coleraine construction of commercial premises
 
McAtanmey O Restructure vacant property to 79,631
Bridge Street, Kilrea provide commercial premises
 
Moore W Demolition of vacant building and 79,671
Stone Row, Coleraine construction of commercial premises
 
Quigg K Restructure vacant property to 47,534
Coleraine Street, Kilrea provide commercial premises
 
Cookstown District Council Area
McClean J Demolition of vacant building and  70,860
Church Street, Cookstown construction of commercial premises
  
Moore S H & Sons Demolition of vacant building and 42,600
Main Street, Pomeroy construction of commercial premises
 
Observer Restructure vacant property to 36,432
Newspaper Ltd provide commercial premises
James Street, Cookstown 

Quinn F Restructure vacant property to 63,000
The Diamond provide commercial premises
Pomeroy
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NAME/ADDRESS PROJECT DESCRIPTION NORTH UK£
Quinn K Demolition of vacant building and 70,609
Main Street, Pomeroy construction of commercial premises

Craigavon Borough Council Area
Carson B Restructure vacant property to 41,778
Queen Street, Lurgan provide commercial premises
 
Henry Murray & Co Restructure vacant property to 92,037
Church Place, Lurgan provide commercial premises
 
McCrory J H Restructure vacant property to 17,848
Church Place, Lurgan provide commercial premises 

QSA Developments Restructure vacant property to 47,954
Bridge Street, Portadown provide commercial premises
 
R J Properties Demolition of vacant building and  85,387
Windsor Avenue, Lurgan construction of commercial premises
 
Reaney R Restructure vacant property to 51,197
Church Street, Portadown provide commercial premises
 
Tiger Investments Ltd Restructure vacant property to provide 100,000
North Street, Lurgan commercial/accommodation
 
Down District Council Area
Bannon L Restructure vacant property to 50,222
Church Street, Downpatrick provide commercial premises 
 
DPH Construction Ltd Restructure vacant property to  34,998
The Square, Strangford provide commercial/accommodation
  
Rafferty E Demolition of vacant building and 32,746
Wateresk Road, Maghera (D) construction of commercial premises 
 
Turley K Demolition of derelict building and  92,783
Scotch Street, Downpatrick construction of commercial premises 

XVII Hundreds Construction of commercial/ 100,000
Furniture Ltd accommodation premises on vacant site
Kildare Street, Strangford 
 
Dungannon & South Tyrone Borough Council Area
Alexander Bain Demolition of vacant building and 50,500
& Murray Optician construction of commercial premises
Church Street, Dungannon 
 
Caledon Arms Hotel Restructure part vacant property 85,748
Main Street, Caledon to provide commercial premises
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NAME/ADDRESS PROJECT DESCRIPTION NORTH UK£
Carncourt Properties Ltd Restructure vacant property to  100,000
Charlemont Street, Moy provide commercial/accommodation

Haughey P Construction of commercial  53,841
Lower William Street premises on vacant site
Dungannon 

Hughes P Demolition of vacant building and 78,387
The Diamond Moy construction of commercial premises
  
McCrystal D Demolition of derelict building and  100,000
Circular Road, Dungannon construction of commercial premises
  
McLaughlin K Restructure to provide pub and fl ats  50,479
Moore Street, Aughnacloy 
 
Niall T & McKenna E Construction of commercial premises 100,000
Main Street, Clogher on vacant site
 
Olimar-S Demolition of derelict building and 74,305
Perry Street, Dungannon construction of commercial premises
 
Patterson M & L Restructure vacant property to  32,274
Church Street, Dungannon provide commercial/accommodation
  
The Dolphin Fast Food Demolition of vacant building and 57,087
Georges Street, Dungannon construction of commercial premises
  
Fermanagh District Council Area
Douglas R Demolition of vacant building and 100,000
Church Street, Enniskillen construction of commercial premises
 
Kane M Demolition of vacant building and 17,334
Darling Street, Enniskillen construction of commercial premises
 
Magee B Demolition of derelict building and 48,060
Castle Street, Irvinestown construction of commercial premises
  
Maurice O’Brien Associates Demolition of vacant building and 94,478
Henry Street, Enniskillen construction of commercial premises
 
Mayers R & M Demolition of derelict building and  72,594
Corporation Street, Enniskillen construction of commercial premises
  
Wiggans I Demolition of derelict building and 55,800
High Street, Newtownbutler construction of commercial premises
 
Wiggins I Restructure vacant property to  70,350
Main Street, Newtownbutler provide commercial/accommodation
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NAME/ADDRESS PROJECT DESCRIPTION NORTH UK£
Larne Borough Council Area
Adela Properties Ltd Construction of commercial/ 100,000
Main Street, Larne accommodation premises on vacant site
 
Giffen H Restructure vacant property to  10,692
Dunluce Street, Larne provide commercial premises
 
Lyttle R Demolition of vacant building and 42,584
Dunluce Street, Larne construction of commercial premises
  
McCambridge H Refurbish to provide retail and fl ats 44,506
Marine Road, Carnlough 

Limavady Borough Council Area
Brown R Demolition of vacant building and 66,000
Catherine Street, Limavady construction of commercial premises
 
O’Kane B Demolition of derelict building and 72,600
Main Street, Dungiven construction of commercial premises
 
Magherafelt District Council Area
Gillan S Restructure vacant property to 64,435
Bank Square, Maghera provide commercial premises 

GillanV Restructure vacant property to 70,376
Hall Street, Maghera provide commercial premises
 
J Rainey Bookmaker Demolition of vacant building and 75,355
Main Street, Castledawson construction of commercial premises
 
Kelly D Demolition of vacant building and  100,000
Main Street, Maghera construction of commercial premises 

Moyhee Land Properties Ltd Construction of commercial premises 100,000
St Lurach’s Road, Maghera on vacant site

Sperrin Properties Restructure vacant property to provide 86,511
High Street, Draperstown commercial premises

Tile Rite Demolition of derelict building and 76,089
Rainey Street, Magherafelt construction of commercial premises
  
Moyle District Council Area
Gillan M Restructure vacant property to  25,188
Ann Street, Ballycastle provide commercial/accommodation
 
McAlary & Strathern Demolition of vacant building and 58,653
Castle Street, Ballycastle construction of commercial premises
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NAME/ADDRESS PROJECT DESCRIPTION NORTH UK£
McFaul V Demolition of vacant building and 41,887
Main Street, Mosside construction of commercial premises

McGowan N Construction of commercial/ 32,500
North Street, Ballycastle accommodation premises on vacant site

Sweeney S Demolition of vacant building and  10,323
Main Street, Bushmills construction of commercial premises

Sweeney Restructure vacant property to  100,000
Main Street, Bushmills provide commercial premises

Newry & Mourne District Council Area
Campbell J Demolition of vacant building and 80,096
Mill Street, Newry construction commercial premises

Cardona Ltd Restructure vacant property to 68,425
Margaret Street, Newry provide commercial premises

Carlin M Demolition of derelict building and  89,664
Edward Street, Newry construction of commercial premises

Clanrye Veterinary Clinic Restructure vacant property to 35,178
Belfast Road, Newry provide commercial premises

Doherty R Restructure vacant property to  30,987
Greencastle Street, Kilkeel provide commercial premises

GPD Ltd Demolition of vacant building and  44,611
Main Street, Forkhill construction of commercial premises

Gerann Properties Demolition of vacant building and  80,253
Monaghan Street, Newry construction of commercial premises

Hughes S Demolition of vacant building and  32,142
Monaghan Street, Newry construction of commercial premises

McCrory S Restructure vacant property to 75,447
Osborne Promenade, Warrenpoint provide commercial premises

Newry Veterinary Centre Restructure vacant property to  12,870
Charlotte Street, Warrenpoint provide commercial/accommodation
 
P Braham & Sons Ltd Restructure vacant property to 72,507
Charlotte Street, Warrenpoint provide commercial premises
 
Tierney J Restructure vacant property to  47,785
Canal Street provide commercial premises
Canal Quay, Newry 
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NAME/ADDRESS PROJECT DESCRIPTION NORTH UK£
Newtownabbey Borough Council Area
Browne D Demolition of vacant building and  100,000
Mill Road, Ballyclare construction of commercial premises

Omagh District Council Area
Daly I Demolition of derelict building and  56,760
Main Street,  construction of commercial premises

Daly L Demolition of derelict building and 57,810
Main Street, Carrickmore construction of commercial premises

Devlin G & M Restructure vacant property to 85,750
Bridge Street, Omagh provide commercial premises

Devlin P Restructure vacant 43,250
Market Street, Omagh property to provide
 commercial/accommodation

Law J Restructure vacant property to 46,000
Derry Road, Omagh provide commercial premises

Mid Ulster Arts & Community Restructure vacant property to  60,000
Association provide commercial premises
Main Street, Carrickmore 

NW of Ireland Demolition of derelict building and 100,000
Printing & Publishing construction of
John Street, Omagh commercial premises
  
Tara Counselling + Person  Restructure vacant property to  51,539
Holmview Terrace, Omagh provide commercial premises
 
Todd W Demolition of vacant building &  82,336
Bridge Street, Omagh construction of commercial premises

Strabane District Council Area
Gallagher A J Restructure vacant property to 100,000
Townhall Street provide commercial premises
Newtownstewart 

Hood & Co Restructure vacant property to  29,914
St Eugenes Road provide commercial premises
Newtownstewart 

Loughlin & Turner Restructure part vacant property to 21,671
Main Street, Newtownstewart provide commercial/accommodation
  
RTC Distributors Ltd Restructure vacant property to 96,030
Main Street, Strabane provide commercial premises 

Appendix 3 - Economic Development



96    International Fund for Ireland

NAME/ADDRESS PROJECT DESCRIPTION NORTH UK£
Williamson B Restructure vacant property to  17,092
Main Street, Castlederg provide commercial premises

Williamson D Restructure vacant property to  37,186
Main Street, Castlederg provide commercial premises

Community Property Development Scheme

A Programme to allow community based organisations to bring vacant property into economic 
use in selected towns and villages throughout Northern Ireland.

NAME/ADDRESS PROJECT DESCRIPTION NORTH UK£
Ards Borough Council Area
Ballywalter Youth    Refurbishment and extension of existing 300,000
& Community Co-operative building to provide a mixed use centre
Main Street, Ballywalter 

Greyabbey District  Construction of 2 storey building to 300,000
Community Association provide 5 workspace/craft units,
Cottage Hill, Greyabbey 2 bed fl ats, 1 community meeting room 
 
Kircubben Regeneration Mixed use development to 300,000
Programme include retail, offi ce and workshops
Main Street, Kircubbin 
 
Ballymena Borough Council Area
Ahoghill Development Co Construction of retail units and 300,000
Cullybackey Road, Ahoghill 7 business units
 

Second Community Projects

A Programme to allow community organisations that have implemented a successful CRISP, 
CERS or CPDS to undertake a further project.

NAME/ADDRESS PROJECT DESCRIPTION NORTH UK£
Down District Council Area
Ballynahinch Regeneration Demolish existing properties to create 250,000
Market House, Ballynahinch commercial space for offi ce and retail use
 
Castlewellan Refurbish listed building to provide 250,000
Regeneration Ltd business centre comprising of
Main Street,Castlewellan offi ce and training accommodation
 
Dungannon & South Tyrone Borough Council Area
Dungannon West Renewal Ltd New build of 4 offi ce units on land at 250,000
Beechvalleyway, Dungannon existing business complex in Dungannon
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NAME/ADDRESS PROJECT DESCRIPTION NORTH UK£
Fermanagh District Council Area
Derrygonnelly & District Build & develop 2 self catering 79,500
Community Enterprises cottages on derelict site at
Tir Navar, Derrygonnelly Tir Navar complex
Holiday Units
Co Fermanagh

Derrylin New build to provide 250,000
Enterprises Ltd workspace units
Main Street, Derrylin

Flagship

NAME/ADDRESS PROJECT DESCRIPTION NORTH/SOUTH UK£ 
County Donegal
Strabane/Lifford Development of cross border leisure 400,000
Waterways Project activities, round Mourne, Foyle and 
Foyle View, Lifford  Finn rivers

All Areas
Special Olympics Ulster Development of Special Athletics clubs 100,000
North Circular Road in Special Olympics Ulster region
Dublin
 
 
Investment Companies

NAME/ADDRESS PROJECT DESCRIPTION NORTH UK£
Belfast City Council Area
Bluechip Technologies Ltd Voice related software 90,000
Heron Avenue, Belfast 

Down District Council Area
Donaghadee Carpets Ltd Carpet manufacturer 1,200,000
High Bangor Road 
Donaghadee

NAME/ADDRESS PROJECT DESCRIPTION SOUTH € 
County Donegal
Iontas Ltd Software development, and 59,790
The Corn Store, Moville graphic design
 
All Areas
Celtrak Ltd Provides telematics solutions re location 300,000
Dunmore Road, Galway based services and remote
 monitoring of vehicles
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NAME/ADDRESS PROJECT DESCRIPTION SOUTH € 
FMC Tech Ltd Developing a system to monitor  114,188
Merville Business mid-voltage powerlines for electrical
Park, Galway utilities
 
Neutekbio Ltd Developing a range of diagnostic/ 250,000
Merville Business prognostic assays in the area of viral 
Park, Galway detection

Sigma X Ltd Development of software for use 100,000
Newcastle, Galway in the structural engineering industry
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